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July 15, 2023

To,

BSE Limited : Code No. 500031
Department of Corporate Services,

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001

National Stock Exchange of India Limited : BAJAJELEC - Series: EQ
Listing Department

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub.: Notice of the 84" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Bajaj Electricals
Limited (“Company”) and the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-23

Further to our letter dated May 23, 2023, and in accordance with the provisions of Regulations 34 and
30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended ("SEBI Listing Regulations"), read with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India's Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, we
hereby submit the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,
containing, inter-alia, the Notice convening the 84" AGM of the Company to be held on Thursday,
August 10, 2023, at 3.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing ("VC") or Other Audio-Visual Means
("OAVM"), to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Businesses:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the: (a) audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon; and (b) audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with the report of Auditors thereon. (Ordinary
Resolution)

2. To declare a dividend of Rs. 4.00 per equity share of face value of Rs. 2.00 each for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023. (Ordinary Resolution)

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Madhur Bajaj (DIN 00014593), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. (Ordinary Resolution)

4. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Rajiv Bajaj (DIN 00018262), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. (Ordinary Resolution)

Special Businesses:

5. Toratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2024. (Ordinary Resolution)

6. To approve the Borrowing by way of Issue of Securities. (Special Resolution)

7. To appoint Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar (DIN: 01875316) as an Independent Director. (Special

Resolution)
Corporate Office: Mulla House 51, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Mumbai 400 001 A
Tel: +91 22 6149 7000 | www.bajajelectricals.com na‘la‘l um“p

Registered Office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Tel: +91 22 6110 7800 | Email: legal@bajajelectricals.com | CIN: L31500MH1938PLC009887
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The Notice of the ensuing 84" AGM of the Company and the Annual Report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023, are being dispatched to the Members, whose email IDs are registered with the
Company or their Depositories, through electronic mode today.

The said Notice and the Annual Report are also placed on the website of the Company:
www.bajajelectricals.com and of Link Intime India Private Limited: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

Brief details of the 84" AGM of the Company are as under:

Date and time of AGM

Thursday, August 10, 2023, at 3.00 p.m. (IST)

Mode

VC / OAVM

Web-link for participation through VC

https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

Cut-off date for e-voting

August 3, 2023

E-voting start date and time

August 6, 2023 at 09:00 a.m. (IST)

E-voting end date and time

August 9, 2023 at 05:00 p.m. (IST)

The Annual Report inter alia contains Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) for the

Financial Year 2022-23.

We request you to take the above on record and that the same be treated as compliance under the
applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
For Bajaj Electricals Limited
SHEKHAR  Sliironm

BAJAJ Date: 2023.07.15 17:36:02
+05'30"

Shekhar Bajaj

Chairman

DIN: 00089358

Encl.: As above.
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KOI NAHI KEHTA KI LIFE EASY HOGI,

KI SUCCESS ASAANI SE MILEGI. This year has been exceptional as we

continued to uphold our commitment
to delivering excellence and building

a sustainable future for all. At the core
of our endeavours lies our on-going
transformation journey - one that we
embarked upon a few years ago and
have taken long strides towards making
this the #DecadeOfBajajElectricals.

U-TURN MAAR LENA ASAAN TOH HOGA,

PAR SUCCESS FINISH LINE PAR HI MILEGI.

JAB HUM DREAMS KO SONE DENGE,

TOH VOH DREAMS HI REH JAAYENGE.

AGAR AMBITIONS KO FUEL NAHI KARENGE,

TOH VOH SIRF KOSHISH KEHLAYENGE.

SO LET'S PULL OURSELVES UP AND STAND FREE ) )
consumer pain points. The new

CAUSE IF LIFE IS TOUGH THEN SO ARE WE.

DAY AFTER DAY, NIGHT AFTER NIGHT,
WE'RE BUILT TO PLAY.

WE'RE BUILT TO FIGHT.

WE'RE BAJAJ, AND WE'RE BUILT FOR LIFE.

We have brought about sustained
impact across business, leadership,
and people policies enabling

us fo create additional value for

our stakeholders. One of the key
initiatives is the transformation of our
brand BAJAJ through the ‘BUILT FOR
LIFE' Campaign. This large-scale
campaign is backed by consumer
insights, innovation, and robust R&D
capabilities to offer a strong product
porifolio to enhance the consumer
proposition.

‘BUILT FOR LIFE’ is inspired by the
Indian consumers' spirit to endure,
not give up, persevere, and

keep performing. Modern Indian
consumers’ time-constrained
lifestyle must be ably supported

by home appliances like ours that
perform seamlessly without glitches
or inefficiencies. This initiative is
underpinned by extensive research
conducted across mulfiple product
categories, wherein we diligently
identified and analysed numerous

positioning of BUILT FOR LIFE, thus,

is a promise of durability and

the resultant portfolio of home
appliances is high endurance,
aesthetically pleasing and low
maintenance. Our unwavering
dedication will drive us towards
creating products and solutions that
exceed consumer expectations,
while simultaneously addressing the
evolving needs and preferences of
our valued customers.

Our brand has always stood for frust
— our consumers' frust in our products
and services for 85 years. As we

take this legacy forward, we are at
the right juncture to take the BAJAJ
brand to the next level.
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&
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About the Report

We are delighted fo share our Annual
Report, which incorporates optional
details to the fullest extent feasible,
following the reporting guidelines
established by the International
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC).
In addition, the GRI (Global Reporting
Initiative) Standards and Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) are
mapped to the KPIs used for reporting
on the Capitals.

Our main objective with this report is
to fulfil the information needs of our
stakeholders. We strive to present

this information in a manner that is
meaningful and applicable to our key
stakeholders as well.

The reporting is aligned with the
following —

= The Companies Act, 2013
= Indian Accounting Standards

= The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Our approach to reporting

Shareholders are now experiencing
a significant shift in their approach
to evaluating corporations. Instead
of solely focusing on financial
performance, stakeholders now
place equal importance on a
company's overall value creation.
Bajaj Electricals, as a responsible
business, has embraced this
transformation and is dedicated to
pursuing sustainable value creation
through its vision. This report serves
as a means to convey essential
details about Bajaj Electricals
Limited's governance, business
model, strategy, opportunity
evaluation, material risk, operations,
and performance for the period
spanning FY 2022-2023.

Reporting year

This comprehensive report mainly
focuses on the period spanning

from April 1, 2022, to March 31, 2023.
Nevertheless, specific segments of
this report include relevant data and
statistics from previous years as well.
The information presented in the
Integrated Report pertains to Bajaj
Electricals Limited as an independent
entity, unless stated otherwise. All
financial and non-financial aspects
adhere to the applicable laws,
regulations, and standards of the
Republic of India.

=

The electronic version of the report can
be found on our website

https://www.bajajelectricals.com

The report discusses 6 capitals

@ Financial Capital

Manufacturing Capital

Intellectual Capital

=Y

Human Capital
Natural Capital

@ Social & Relationship Capital

Material issues

Bajaj Electricals has conducted a
materiality assessment to identify

the most significant issues that could
have an impact on the company's
ability fo create long-term value for
its stakeholders. These issues were
determined by considering internal
and external factors, industry trends,
the company's business strategy, and
the economic environment.

The management of Bajaj Electricals
will review these material issues as the
company progresses on its sustainability
journey. The Materiality section (on

page 40) provides a brief explanation
of these issues. By examining these
material topics, we can gain insights
into the factors that drive the
company's growth.

Reporting boundary

This report is for Bajaj Electricals and
the scope of this report covers its

four manufacturing locations, its
Offices across India, project sites,
international projects managed from
India. It includes the segments of Bajaj
Electricals — Consumer Products,
Lighting Solutions and Engineering,
Procurement & Consfruction.

Assurance

To ensure the infegrity of facts and
information, the Management have
reviewed the facts and qualitative

Built on
frust and legacy

Page 6

statements in the Annual Report.
The statutory auditor's SR B C & Co.
LLP, Chartered Accountants have
provided an unmodified opinion on
the financial statements and the
‘Independent Auditor’'s Report’ has
been duly incorporated as a part of
this report.

Queries regarding the report

Any feedback or query related to this
report can be communicated to

Mr. Ajay Nagle
CS & Compliance Officer
legal@bajajelectricals.com

Readers can also reach out to
us at the above email to provide
feedback on improving our
disclosures.

Accelerating organisational
fransformation

Page 10

A convenient, innovative
and customer-centric
portfolio

Page 16

Building a robust business
model with prudent capital
allocations

Page 34



About Bajaj Group

The Bajaj Group has consistently exceeded
the expectations of its customers, patrons,
employees, communities, and other
stakeholders while remaining true to the vision
and principles of its founder, Shri Jamnalal
Bajaj. With its foundation laid over nine
decades ago in 1926, the Group has grown
info a dynamic conglomerate that promotes
shared prosperity and the greater good.

Today, the Bajaj Group is one of
India's most esteemed business
houses, operating across diverse
industries such as automobiles,
financial services, insurance,
steel, consumer appliances,
fast-moving electrical goods,
engineering, procurement and
construction, travel and tourism,
and material handling.

Industries we serve:

Home Appliances

Automobile
S (2 wheelers & 3 wheelers)

Fans

© @ ®

04 Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

The Bajaj Group remains
committed to its core values of
ethical business practices and
social development, despite
experiencing remarkable

growth and success in its various
businesses. It has evolved
beyond being just a corporate
entity and has become a catalyst
for social empowerment. In

Lighting Solutions

% EPC - Power Transmission
& Distribution
Travel

addition to its business priorities,
the Group actively engages

in community development,
healthcare initiatives, education
promotion, and support for art,
heritage, and sports. Moreover,
the Bajaj Group endeavours to
restore and maintain ecological
balance, recognising the
importance of environmental
sustainability.

Y Iron and Steel

NBFC /Financial Services

B9 [nsurance

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

Jamnalal Bajaj
(1889 — 1942)

More than a hundred
years ago, a visionary
philanthropist boldly
embarked on a
groundbreaking
endeavour by employing
business as a means

to benefit society. Shri.
Jamnalal Bajaj, the
esteemed founder of
the Bajaj Group, earned
the endearing title of
the ‘Merchant Prince’
from Mahatma Gandhi
himself. Renowned

for their exceptional
quality, his enterprises
stood apart due to his
firm refusal to adopt
unethical cost-cutting
measures.

%
e

Kamalnayan Bajaj
(1915-1972)

Following the demise

of Shri. Jamnalal in

1942, Shri. Kamalnayan
Bajaj assumed

the responsibility

of overseeing the
businesses. He expanded
the Bajaj Group info new
territories, aligning with
the vision of a modern
and diverse India.
Through the tumultuous
partition and post-
independence era, he
navigated industrial and
legal challenges with
great skill.

Ramkrishna Bajaj
(1923 - 1994)

In 1972, Shri. Ramkrishna
Bajaj, the younger son
of the Bajaj family,
assumed leadership

of the Bajaj Group,
complementing his
brother's astute business
skills. He distinguished
himself as a leader with
a unique approach o
business, establishing
an improved ethical
business environment
materialised through the
establishment of two
influential organisations
that he co-founded.
These organisations,
namely the Council for
Fair Business Practices
and the Advertising
Standards Council of
India, continue fo hold
significant relevance
even today.

Rahul Bajaj
(1938 — 2022)

Shri. Rahul Bajaj, a Padma
Bhushan awardee and
former Rajya Sabha
member, took over in
1994. Under his guidance,
the Bajaj Group flourished
across diverse sectors,
including automobiles,
insurance, investment,
and consumer finance.
His unwavering
determination propelled
the Group to become
one of India's largest

and most respected
conglomerates.
Furthermore, his strong
commitment to societal
well-being was evident
through effective
leadership of the

Group's CSR initiatives
and the Jamnalal Bajqj
Foundation.

84" Annual Report 2022-23 05



About Bajaj Electricals

Built on

Bajaj Electricals is
one of the most
renowned Consumer
Products, Lighting
Solutions and EPC
Project companies
in India. With a rich
legacy spanning
over eight decades,
the Company has
earned a reputation
as a ‘frusted brand’
that is dedicated

to maximising value
creation for diverse
stakeholders.

The Company has undergone

a remarkable transformation
journey in recent years. From a rich
legacy spanning over 85 years, the
company has successfully achieved
significant milestones, including a
furnaround in performance, debt-
free status, and the adoption of a
consumer-centric 'house of brands'
approach. This fransformation

has empowered Bajaj Electricals
fo drive agility, innovation, and
focused growth across its diverse
business portfolio.

06 |Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

rust and Legacy

The operations of the group

are organised into three distinct
segments: the consumer products
segment, which offers a wide
range of products; the lighting
solutions segment, catering fo
both consumer and professional
needs; and the robust Engineering,
Procurement, and Construction
division, specialising in power
fransmission and distribution.

With a strong commitment
to excellence, customer
satisfaction, and
technological advancements,
BAJAJ, Nirlep and Morphy
Richards have emerged

as preferred brands in

the Indian market. This
dedication has played

a significant role in the
sustained growth and
success of the group.

Refer more about our
businesses and brands on

Page 16

of the report.

P |

Key Highlights

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

() (5429 <216 19.2%
Financial Total Revenue PAT ROCE
Capital in (crore) in (crore)
Refer Page 46 for more details.
cﬁ:}i 4 57% 3069 Lakh sqft
Manufactured Manufacturing Factory Warehouse
Capital sites Utilisation Footprint
Refer Page 50 for more deftails.

184 18 678
Intellectual People in Patents filed Launched new
Capital R&D team SKUs in Consumer

Refer Page 58 for more details.

Products & Lighting
Solutions

Permanent Employee Gender diversity
employees Engagement (excl. factories)
Score
Refer Page 72 for more details.
(%) 700+ 90+ ~ 2L
Social and Dealer network Supplier Retailer
Relationship network network
Capital
Refer Page 82 for more details.
O 86,000+ 91% 15,507 e
Natural Capital Trees planted Waste recycled Green Energy
generated

Refer Page 92 for more details.

(Chakan 605, Nirlep 687, RU 792)*

84" Annual Report 2022-23| 07



Aligning with UNSDGs

A Culture of Responsibility
and Innovation

By embracing the SDGs as a guiding framework, we are
integrating sustainability into our core business strategy, fostering
a culture of responsibility, innovation, and collaboration. Through
the embedding of sustainable practices into our operations,
active engagement in community development initiatives, and
efforts to safeguard the environment, we conftribute to the larger
vision of creating a more inclusive, peaceful, and prosperous
world for present and future generations.

08 |Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

/e

We ensure safety and
wellbeing at work by adopting
the right safety measures
along with regular safety
fraining of the employees to
eliminate incidents.

QUALITY
EDUCATION

L]

We have strengthened
the infrastructure in
schools to promote quality
education for children.

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

GENDER
EQUALITY

g

We are empowering our
women workforce through
regular encouragement
sessions and maternity
support which ensures equal
opportunities for them.

CLEANWATER
AND SANITATION

L

We are recycling water in
our operational processes
while striving to reduce the
consumption of water.

'DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

Efficient capital allocation,
excellence in operational
activities and employing the
right people have conftributed
to economic growth.

9 INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
ANDINFRASTRUCTURE

&3

Our R&D team has reinforced
the customer-centricity of
our products by continuously
investing in innovation.

10 REDUCED
INEQUALITIES
< —
—

We are taking initiatives through
employee engagement

and talent development
programmes to ensure diversity
and inclusivity among our
people.

1 CLIMATE
ACTION

P 4

We have adopted renewable
energy sources to achieve our
net zero target and combat
climate change.

1 SUSTAINABLECITIES
/AND GOMMUNITIES

alle

We are undertaking initiatives
to uplift local communities by
providing quality healthcare
and education and ensuring
a holistic development of the
society.

12 Gt
ANDPRODUCTION

QO

We practice responsible
production with an integrated
system to ensure that our
products cause the least
harm fo the environment.

84" Annual Report 2022-23| 09



Chairman’s Message

10 | Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2022-23 has been

a landmark year for your
Company in many ways. As we
have shared in earlier investor
communications, a few years
ago we embarked upon our
transformation journey with a
vision to make 2020-2030 the
“Decade of Bajqj Electricals”.
As we completed Horizon 1 of
that strategic roadmap during
the year gone by and have
entered Horizon 2, we are
beginning to see the clear fruits
and milestones in this journey.

We became net-debt-free in
March 2022 and have exited
the year gone by with surplus
cash. We have maintained
our record of consistently
generating positive cashflow
from operations every quarter,
all through the volatile market
conditions.

Our business model is
structurally fixed with the right
focus on each business in line
with our sfrategic goals and
long-term value creation.

Our EPC (Power Transmission
and Power Distribution) business
has delivered a full turn-around
and been profitable on a
full-year basis, demonstrating
our commitment to set that
business on the right strategic
and operating path.

The scheme of arrangement
that we had announced last
year for the demerger of our
EPC business intfo a separate
listed entity “Bajel Projects
Limited" is in the final stages
of regulatory approvals and
the process will be completed
in the coming few months.
Operationally the teams are
fully geared up for this.

During the year we relaunched
our flagship brand “BAJAJ" with
the BUILT FOR LIFE positioning.

| believe this will be a clear
pivot and marker for the destiny
and growth of the BAJAJ

brand for several decades to
come — to fortify its relationship
with consumers and its distinct
position in the marketplace.

The investments and efforts in our
research and development are
beginning to deliver outcomes in
the form of a wide range of new,
distinct and innovative products
across various categories.

This along with our renewed
brand thrust, has been and will
continue fo be the key enabler
for growth in our market shares
during the year gone by and the
years to come.

Our financial and operational
performance continues to
improve. In a year that has
been challenging all around
due to continuing impact of
the Russia-Ukraine war and
rising interest rates, leading
to subdued consumption
demand, our performance
has been ahead of industry
benchmarks and peers.

e ESG (Environmental, Social,
and Governance) is an integral
part of our business strategy.
We prioritize responsible
operations and value creation
for all stakeholders. Through
targeted initiatives, we reduce
our environmental impact,
promote social well-being, and
uphold strong governance
practices. Our commitment
to ESG ensures sustainable
growth, innovation, and
positive contributions to the
environment, society, and
economy.

« We have continued to drive
organisational fransformation
and strengthening, in
terms of talent at all levels,
systems and processes and
workplace culture. As part
of our commitment fo better
corporate governance as
well as professionalising the
management, during the
year our Board decided to
split the roles of Chairman
and Managing Director.
Accordingly, | continue as
Executive Chairman of the
Company, while our erstwhile
Executive Director, Anuj Poddar
was elevated to the position of
Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer.

It would be worthy to note that all
these changes and achievements
(not just in the year gone by, but
over the last few years), have
been realised in a period that has
been amongst the most volatile
and challenging for all of industry
and all countries and economies,
based on my experience over

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

the last several decades. That to
me, is the most graftifying aspect
of it, as it represents the new
Bajaj Electricals Limited — and

the grit, resilient and unwavering
executional and strategic focus
of our leadership and teams. So, |
am tempted to say that while BUILT
FOR LIFE is the positioning of our
flagship consumer brand BAJAJ,
it also reflects the ethos of what
your company stands for and will
become synonymous with.

Our future is equally exciting: as we
soon split info 2 companies going
forward - Bajaj Electricals Limited
and Bajel Projects Limited — we
have laid strong foundations for
each of them to do well and grow
at a faster pace and add more
value in their respective domains.

As always, | remain deeply
grateful for the contributions

of Anuj Poddar, team Bajaj,
business associates, our enfire
Board of Directors and you, our
shareholders, for your frust in us.

Yours sincerely,

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman

84" Annual Report 2022-23| 11



We have developed a
strong product development
roadmap - with meaningful
innovations and consumer
value propositions.

Anuj Poddar
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to share that
despite the various market
challenges, our financial
performance during the
previous year has been strong
and clearly ahead of industry.

12 | Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer's Message

Our total revenues from
operations grew from ¥ 4,813
crores (in 2021-22) to % 5,429
crores. Our Profit Before Tax
grew from % 166 crores to ¥ 303
crores. Our PAT grew from % 124
crores to % 216 crores. Further,
your Company continued to
generate strong cashflow from
operations of ¥ 450 crores.

Our Consumer Products segment
delivered growth of 13.5% during the
previous year. This points to clear market-
share growth on the back of several
product launches and ongoing portfolio
premiumisation. The sesgmental PBIT

grew from % 226 crores in 2021-22 to % 247
crores. Despite the various challenges

on costs as well as competitive pricing
intensity, we have held on to our margins.

In the previous year, we carved out
Lighting Solutions as a separate business
segment, given our planned thrust for
that business in the coming years. This
segment delivered growth of 4.1% in a
period where industry de-grew and the
segmental PBIT grew from % 59 crores in
2021-22 to % 87 crores. We shall continue
to invest in this segment to make it a
strong growth driver for us going forward.

Our EPC segment has delivered a
strong turnaround with revenue growth
of 29.5% in the previous year and a
posifive PBIT of ¥ 7 crores on a full-year
basis. This marks the culminatfion of our
phase of consolidating this business to
put it on an operationally robust path
with strong project execution and
confrols. Going forward, based on its
strong order book and the benefit of

operating as a separate, focused entity,

I am confident it will deliver strong
growth and value creation.

Our strong financial performance
is the outcome of several ongoing
strategic initiatives, a few of which
| will talk about.

Brand: Our brands are our most
valuable assets as a company in
the consumer space. A couple

of years ago we embarked

upon defining an overall brand
architecture framework that
would propel your Company into
operating as a ‘house of multiple
brands’, each with a distinct
identity and positioning. As a part
of this we relaunched our flagship
brand 'BAJAJ' with the BUILT FOR
LIFE positioning. Going forward

you will see the multiple-brands-
with-distinct-identities strategy play
out and pivot us info becoming a
highly consumer-centric company.

Products: We have developed

a strong product development
roadmap — with meaningful
innovations and consumer value
propositions. During the previous
year we launched 165 SKUs in the
Consumer Products segment and
513 SKUs in the Lighting Solutions
segment. These launches have
helped plug gaps in our portfolio,
drive greater premiumisation

and grow market-shares across
categories. This is enabled by
stfrong research and development
capabilities, which we shall
continue to invest in, to build long
term perspective competitive
advantage.

Operational excellence: We
have clearly identified areas of
operational improvement. This

covers various aspects of sourcing,
manufacturing, logistics, go-to-
market and technology. Each

of these is being addressed in

a focused manner. During the
previous year we embarked upon
an ambitious digital tfransformation
exercise that shall culminate

over the next 2 years. All of these
initiatives will not just provide direct
financial benefits but make us a
best-in-class company that is far
more agile and competitive player.

People and culture: A
fundamental aspect of our
ongoing transformation has been
the revamp of our talent pool and
organisational culture. During the
year, we have further strengthened
our organisation across levels from
the induction of our first batch of
management frainees right up to
the onboarding of senior talent

at the leadership level. We were
recognised by Great Place To
Work ® Institute India for the third
fime in a row, fostered Diversity
and Inclusion through relevant
policies and are institutionalising

a professionalised and high-
performance-driven organisation.

Sustainability: Sustainability is a
core value that guides our business
decisions. We are committed

to reducing our environmental
impact through sustainable
manufacturing processes,
opftimising resource efficiency,
minimising our carbon footprint,
and promoting supply chain
efficiency. We firmly believe that
by prioritising sustainability, we
can provide consumers with
eco-friendly products while
driving circularity, efficient waste

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

management, water and energy
conservation, and enhancing
community livelihood.

On a personal note, | would like

to acknowledge and thank all of
you, our shareholders as well as
our Board and our Chairman for
entrusting me with the responsibility
as Managing Director and

Chief Executive Officer of your
Company. Along with our feam,

| shall continue to work with the
same zeal and commitment as we
have so far.

I would like to end with a famous
maxim: “People overestimate
what they can do in a year &
underestimate what they can
achieve in 10 years.”

Our future beckons us.

Warm regards,

Anuj Poddar
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

84" Annual Report 2022-23| 13
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Performance Highlights

Steady Performance
through Disciplined

Execution

Market Capitalisation Basic EPS Book Value Per Share
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All above numbers are on standalone basis
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All above numbers are based on standalone basis
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Our Businesses

A Convenient, Innovative
and Customer-Centric

Portfolio

Consumer products

Bajaj Electricals takes great pride in its consumer-centric approach, attuned to the
ever-evolving tastes and preferences of our customers. The Company prioritises research
and development to bridge the gap between consumer needs and innovative product
solutions. The brands are known for their durability, convenience, and aesthetic appeal,
offering products that seamlessly infegrate into modern lifestyles. The Company is
committed to delivering energy-efficient and intelligent solutions that enhance the overall
convenience and quality of life of our valued customers.

.> BUILT FOR LIFE

BAJAJ offers a diverse range

of durable and contemporary
appliances to meet the evolving
needs of consumers. Through a
deep understanding of consumer
preferences, meaningful
innovation and adherence fo
stringent quality standards , the
brand continues to be trusted by
millions of Indian consumers.

BUILT FOR LIFE. This tfransformative
campaign is driven by deep
consumer insights, relentless
innovation, and strong research
and development capabilities.
BAJAJ has revamped its

product portfolio to align with

the indomitable spirit of Indian
consumers who embody
endurance, perseverance, and a
determination to keep performing.

16 |Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Nirlep, a renowned brand in the world

of non-stick cookware, stands out for its
deep understanding of diverse cooking
practices across India. As a market leader
in its category, Nirlep continues to redefine
culinary experiences. With a relentless
focus on modern lifestyles, the brand has
pioneered advanced non-stick coatings
and specialised heat-resistant cookware,
delivering convenience and superior
quality to our discerning customers.

MorphyRichards

As modern Indian consumers aim to create

a joyful environment at home, they seek
products that align with evolving lifestyles.
Morphy Richards understands this shiff and
offers infuitive and technologically advanced
solutions that seamlessly integrate with the
consumer's unique preferences. With arich
British heritage, the brand excels in product
design and aesthetics, igniting happiness
through visually appealing offerings. At the
same fime, Morphy Richards' commitment

fo engineering excellence ensures superior
functionality, enhancing the overall consumer
experience. From stylish kitchen appliances to
cutting-edge home essentials, Morphy Richards
caters to the diverse needs of individuals,
empowering them to curate spaces that reflect
their frue selves.

Corporate overview
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Financial Statements

STELLAR, STYLISH AND
STURDY COOKING ESSENTIALS
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Our Businesses (confinued...)

Lighting solutions

With a stfrong emphasis on
aesthetic design and advanced
features, our lighting solutions offer
an extensive range of products

fo meet diverse needs. From
consumer lighting opfions to
professional solutions, we cater

fo residential, commercial, and
industrial applications.

Our energy-efficient lights are
specifically designed to provide
sustainable and cost-effective
alternatives fo conventional
lighting. By incorporating the latest
tfechnology and innovative design
elements, we ensure that our
lighting solutions not only enhance
the visual appeal of any space but
also deliver optimal performance
and longevity.

Consumer lighting

We have a diverse range of
consumer lighting products which
offers smart lighting solutions for
the evolving needs consumers
and complements modern home
décors.

18 | Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)
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Professional lighting

Built with cutting-edge technologies, our offerings are designed fo provide unparalleled quality, durability,
and reliability. Whether it is for commercial spaces, industrial facilities, or outdoor spaces, our advanced
lighting solutions ensure optimal illumination and create a sense of security. With a focus on delivering superior
performance and energy efficiency, our professional lighting solufions are frusted by businesses and industries
across diverse sectors.

OUTDOOR SOLUTIONS ®  INDOOR SOLUTIONS u

84" Annual Report 2022-23| 19
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Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)

As a prominent player in the seamless and secure transmission
power and transmission sector, of power, we play a crucial role in
Bajaj Electricals holds a position driving economic growth, uplifting
of pride and responsibility. Our communities, and improving the
expertise and commitment is quality of life. Our dedicated
evident in our robust execution teams work tirelessly to deliver

of Engineering, Procurement, excellence, and confribute to the
and Construction (EPC) projects, nation's progress and prosperity.

including the installation of critical
infrastructure such as monopoles
and fransmission lines. With an
unwavering focus on ensuring

i
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New Products

Enabling Innovation.
Redefining Possibilifies.

Consumer products

o BAIA
BUILT FOR LFE

Appliances

3

E

E @ -
Soleiza

(L N
Robusta Mantilla Maestro
Geyser Geyser Geyser Geyser

o

Juvel Digi Mixer (L Elegance

s

Sponta Carve Mixer Elegance Wine
Geyser Grinder Purple Mixer Grinder Mixer Grinder
Grinder
a\ I i
Alluro RHT2C Tower RCX 1.8 (L ICK 200 FP Micro Wave
Iron Room Heater Duo Rice 2501 ETC
Cooker
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top

(L 3B SS Glass cook

(L BAJAJ183680
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(L BAJAJ42790 Grill Ultra 2-Slice

Fans and coolers

(L Adonis Air Plus

Ceiling Fan

Esteem
Pedestal Fan

<L:::_”:ar

(L Stylo Ceiling

Fan

}

—

DMH 90 Neo
Air cooler

(L Cresent (L Classico Ceiling

Ceiling Fan Fan

=

(L [ (]
TMH 36 SKIVE

Air cooler
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New Products (continued...)

Morph
Rich%rzls

(L Relish 750W 1 (L Inspira Dry (L 5L Digital Air 54RCSS
Iron Fryer BL Dehydro

(L Europa (L Radiant 1.8 lir Kube water I OTG 52RCSS Europa
Brewmaster electric Kettle heater Superb Xpresso 800

(L Luxe Beauty (L SteamPro (L Belleza 2000W

0.5 lir Travel Induction Cooktop
Keftle

(L AT 205

AutoPresso
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o> BAJAJ

Professional Lighting
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Street Light

(L BEAM-300 (L Edge Next LEd-

WATTS ---4 Mid Wattage

Area Light —msm |ndustriql -
Light

(L AlO Premium (L

12-120W Solar

Amaze- Nuke

Commercial Lighting

ovpeee”’

(L Conscio j) Dovee

Consumer Lighting

(L Mini Borage 30/45W (LT.ED Strip (L Algarve

(L Hyperion full glow

j) Hyperion full glow led (L Ledz inverter linear
led panels 15w panels 15w

lamp_10w
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Board of Directors
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\
} & O

Shekhar Bajaj Anuj Poddar Harsh Vardhan Goenka
Chairman Managing Director & CEO Independent Director
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Rats.

Shailesh Haribhakti
Independent Director

e, ¥

Non-Executive Director

Madhur Bajaj Rajiv Bajaj Munish Khetrapal
Non-Executive Director

Independent Director

i~

o
%
777
Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh
Independent Director

Scan to our website for profile of our Board of
T board-of-directors/

Pooja Bajaj Directors https://www.bdgdjajelectricals.com/
Non-Executive Director
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T Dr. Indu Shahani
Independent Director

Sudarshan Sampathkumar
Additional Director
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Awards and Accolades

Product of the Year 2022
Morphy Richards
DigiChef
by NielsenlQ

Recognised for
Distinguished Performance

Product of the Year 2022

Morphy Richards Kube
Water Heater
by NielsenlQ

Considered the world’s largest award for product innovation,
the NielsenlQ Award selects products on the basis of customer
votes. The product’'s advanced features combined with its
superior quality and durability helped Morphy Richards Digichef
and Morphy Richards Kube to bag the top honours in the OTG
and Water Heater categories, respectively.

Certified as a Great
Place To Work®

for the 3
consecutive year

Corporate overview
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A testimony to the efforts and actions that have translated into
tangible value creation for our people. This takes the Company
a step closer towards its goal of transforming the employee
experience.

CEAMA Man of
Small Appliances
Award - 2022

By the apex industry
body CEAMA

28 |Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Mr. Anuj Poddar, MD & CEO, Bajaj Electricals Limited was
conferred with the highest industry honour by the Consumer
Electronics and Appliances Manufacturers Association
(CEAMA) in recognition of his remarkable and significant
contribution to the Indian Appliances industry. Shri Piyush Goyal,
Hon'ble Minister for Commerce & Industry presented the award
at CEAMA’s 43rd Annual Function.

Awards for ‘Finance
Innovation of the Year’
and ‘Healthy Balance

Sheet management’

At the Business World —
Finance Strategy
Awards 2023

The Company has won the ‘Finance Innovation of the Year’
award for multiple initiatives that helped to improve margins
and working capital cycle, thereby enabling the Company to
become debt free.

S|

Mr. EC Prasad

(- Chief Financial Officer -
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Awards and Accolades (continued...)

Winner of
MQH Best Practices
Competition
(Manufacturing
Category)

By the IMC Ramkrishna
Bajaj National Quality
Award Trust

The National Award is a testament to the Company's ability to
adhere to best practices that help the business to generate
positive returns. It showcases the organisation’s commitment
towards quality assurance and ifs focus on confinuous product
improvements to ensure customer delight.

Featured in ‘Top 50

organisations with

Great Managers —
2022’ list

By People Business

30 |Bdjaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Our managers play an important role in creating high powered
teams who deliver excellent business results. The Company
consciously puts in a lot of effort to strengthen its leadership and
talent pipeline, a fact recognised by GPTW.

H-lt!.l
LS Lk

rarpa

THE GREAT MANAGER AWARTS

- - i . i— o
{:_'""'Iiirltrl-------
M ETTYXEEE L EXERS

Best Customer
Experience
Management 2022

By Konnect Insights
Excellence

Corporate overview
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Recognition for Online Reputation Management efforts that
aid the creation of winning strategies designed to engage
customers and fulfil consumer expectations.

Enterprise that
demonstrated Best
Technology Adoption

At the NASSCOM SME
Inspire Awards 2023

This award is a testament to the Company’s commitment
towards Excellence in Manufacturing. Leveraging technology
to drive innovation and growth, the winning initiative has
improved productivity, reduced downtimes, minimised energy
consumption and improved asset monitoring.
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Awards and Accolades (continued...)

Quality Enterprise
Leadership Award 2022

By Frost & Sullivan’s
Project Evaluation and
Recognition Program
(PERP)

Bajaj Electricals won the award for ‘Quality Enferprise
Leadership’ in the Manufacturing Sector from Frost & Sullivan’s
Project Evaluation and Recognition Program (PERP) 2022. The
winning project has significantly confributed towards enhancing
business value.

Winner of the
ultimate packaging
accolade

WorldStar Packaging
Award

The prestigious WorldStar
Award was conferred upon the
Company in recognition of its
efforts for innovative packaging
of the '45 Kg Stadium Lights
(Electronics category)'. The
non- conventional approach for
designing a packaging solution
that ensured safe handling of
Stadium Lights (weighing 45-70
kgs) using 100% eco-friendly
material has helped reduce the
overall carbon foofprint. The
project stood out among ~450+
entries sent by companies from
41 countries.

Corporate overview
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fﬁ

WPO

WOmLD

FACHAGING
DRCARISATION

WORLDSTAR
WINNER 2023

Innovative Product/
Service Award 2023

At the Golden
Peacock International
Award
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We have been recognised for innovation in packaging for
Stadium Lights. It helped to withstand heavy stack load and
ensured stability of the package during transportation, storage,
stack and handling.

Good Design®
Award - 2022
Morphy Richards
KUBE Water Heater

Morphy Richards KUBE Water Heater was recognised by the
GOOD DESIGN® Award as an innovative and cutting-edge
product. The product stood out among entries from ~50 nations
for its contemporary design and superior functionality.

Best Digital
Transformation Project
2022 At Technology
Excellence Awards by
Quantic India

CITISOL LMS - a unified platform for Smart Lighting
Management, is an innovative loT solution that won the award
for Best Digital Transformation Project at the Technology
Excellence Awards. It is a validation of the Company’s efforts
to become a fronfrunner in energy efficient and digitally
managed smart lighting systems and driving the industry

tfowards digital fransformation.
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Business Model

Adding Value to Life

nput ___________ (gl Operating Business Model g Outout () Outcomes _________(Eudl) SDGs linked |

Financial Capital

Average Capital Employed % 1,829 crs
Average Net Worth % 1,806 crs
Gross Capex ¥ 86 crs

L]
L]
L]
e Brand Investments ¥ 135 crs

Manufactured Capital

e Manufacturing Sites 4

e Installed Capacity EPC & Professional Lighting
36,200 MT

e Installed Capacity Consumer Products &
Consumer Lighting 19.3 Mn

o Warehouse footprint 30.69 Lakh sqft

Human Capital

Permanent employees/workers 2,500
Investment in Training (in manhours)
52,096 manhours

Presence in countries 4

Gender diversity: excluding factories 8%

Social and Relationship Capital

Vendor Base excluding factories 318

MSME touchpoints excluding factories 231

% of Domestic Sourcing for CP 90%

Dealer Base (including Consumer Products &
Consumer Lighting) 732

Retailer Base for Consumer products ~2 Lacs
No of CSR partners11

CSR Spend % 3.01 crs

No. of Customer Care Centers 621

Intellectual Capital

o Team strength 184
o Patents Filed 18
o Design Filed 66

Natural Capital

Installed Renewable Capacity Wind 2,800 KW
and Solar 2,138 KWP

Material Consumed EPC & Professional
Lighting 30,004.97 MT

Trees Plantation 86,000 trees

36 |Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)
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Financial Capital
e Mcap FY 2022-23 ¥>12,000 crs

e Totfal Revenues ¥ 5,429 crs

e EBITZ352crs

o PATR216 crs

e Dividend Payout in FY 2022-23 20%
e Net Surplus funds ¥ 411 crs

e Return on Capital Employed 19.2%

Corporate overview
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Consistent revenue growth

. 8 it [l 9 e
and bottom line growth /~/
Enhanced value creation “' &

for all stakeholders

B

Manufactured Capital

e No. of Units produced: Consumer Products &
Consumer Lighting 11.0 Mn

e EPC & Professional Lighting production 28007 MT

e Factory Capacity uftilisation §7%

e No. of c-Kms connected (Power Transmission)
462 c-kms

A robust manufacturing
eco-system driven by
operating efficiencies and

new-age fechnologies 1 e 12 S,
Accredited by national and ﬁEéﬁ (@0)
international regulatory

bodies

Human Capital
New employees onboarded during FY'23 590
Average age of Onroll employees < 39 yrs
Employees with tenure excluding factories >
10 year 18%
Engagement score as per Great Place to
Work (GPTW) 83%
Attrition excluding factories 25%

A diverse and inclusive s
workforce that enhances Mfe N
employee productivity and U g

nurtures a conducive working 8 Ecton i 10 e
environment M =

Continuous opportunities for
learning and development
with career growth

Social and Relationship Capital

Net Promoter Score 38

Customer Satisfaction Score (CSAT) > 99%
Customer complaints for appliances c. 1.8%
Customer complaints for fans < 1.7 %

New OEMs partnered excluding factories 43
Pin codes serviced 18,929

Employee volunteering Days for CSR 3,083 days

Maintaining healthy and mutually
beneficial relationships with key
stakeholders.

§ tammn
e RO
',

o st

Ensuring effective stakeholder
engagement

Creating adequate employment
opportunities

Intellectual Capital

o New SKU launched (Consumer Products) 165
SKUs

o New SKU launched (Lighting Solutions) 513 SKUs

o Designs accepted 38

o Development of sustainable

Improved quality of products

Continuous innovation of new, energy
efficient and eco-friendly products

g o [l g w40 Evose
econoucsons [l NOMUSTIGIRE coswpr
/\/ ; ApRIBTIN
13 s 16 e
Acnon HOSTRG:
BSOS

technologies and processes
Improvement of premium product
portfolio

Widening of product spectrum

Natural Capital

Green Energy generated GJ 15,507
Waste recycled 91%

Continuous focus on increasing
the share of renewable energy
in the total energy mix.

B2 14 E
D|re

Refer fo - https://sdgs.un.org/goals
for SDGs
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carbon footprint
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Stakeholder Engagement

Focused on

Continuous

At Bajaj Electricals, we
believe in fransparent
communication with
our stakeholders.

We proactively
engage with diverse
stakeholders to
understand their
perspectives, address
concerns and include
suggestions for

improving our business.

@ Financial Capital

Human Capital
@ Manufactured Capital
@ intellectual Capital
@ Social and Relationship Capital

Natural Capital
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Stakeholders

Board and
Leadership
o

o@ro
[N (N N}

Investors

oo’
1

Customers

%:
=

Vendors

&

Employees

Communities

¢
Q00

Dialogues

The management and the leadership

feam are extremely important for setting

the company'’s strategic direction, monitor
financial performance, mitigate risks, and
ensure compliance with laws and regulations

Investors provide financial resources
necessary for growing and expanding
the business. They also help to ensure
accountability and fransparency
fowards stakeholders.

We strive to fulfil the needs and
expectations of our customers with
excellent products and services as

they influence the company's market
reputation and play an integral role in its
success.

To ensure cost-effectiveness, timely delivery
of goods and maintenance of an efficient
supply chain network, we maintain strong
relation with vendors

Our employees’ expertise and
knowledge is the foundation for
our success.

We continue fo strengthen ties with local
communities and improve lives through
various initiatives.

Adherence to core values
within the organisation
Deliver sustainable growth
Value creation for
stakeholders

Compliance with rules
and regulations
Scalability of the business
and financial growth
Higher refurn on
investments

Authentic disclosures of
financial statements

Ensure quality of products
Use of new-age
technologies

Sustainable and Durable
Products

Fair trade practices
Compliance with ethical
standards, environmental
regulations

Learning and
development

Career enhancement
Employee benefits
Equal opportunities

Upliftment of communities
Health and well-being of
people

Livelihood generation

Board and Committee
meetings

Annual general
meetings

Investor and analyst
meet and conferences
Quarterly earnings call
and presentations
Integrated reports and
press releases

Customer safisfaction
surveys

Brand Campaigns
(ATL & BTL)

Social media engagements

Loyalty programmes

Vendor meets

Training programmes
Quality enhancement
programmes
Feedbacks and surveys

Employee satfisfaction
surveys

Rewards and recognition

Training and
development
programmes

CSR activities
Initiatives for the
betterment of society

Board meetings held in
FY 2022-2023: 6

Total Board Committee
Meetings held in FY
2022-2023: 24

Total no. of annual
general meetings held:
1 AGM

Total 1-on-1

investor meets and
conferences held in FY
2022-23: 62

Regular customer
feedback

Need based
communication

Regular follow up

Regular audits at
vendor sites

Ongoing training and
feedback

Ongoing
Need based

Corporate overview
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Capitals Impacted
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Materiality Assessment

Designed to ldentify

and Evaluate Key
Business Aspects

Materiality is a crucial element
in our sustainability approach
as it helps us focus on the most
significant issues, engage with
our stakeholders effectively,
drive innovation, and enhance
accountability. By integrating
materiality into our decision-
making processes, we navigate
the complex landscape of
sustainability, create shared
value, and contribute to a more
sustainable and inclusive world.

Identifying critical issues to
enhance stakeholder value

Bajaj Electricals recognises

the significance of sustainable
development and acknowledges
the need to identify material fopics
that are crucial for the growth and
development of the Company

as well as its stakeholders. In FY
2022-23, in collaboration with

an independent consulting firm,
the Company conducted a
comprehensive assessment of
material issues to identify ESG
(Environmental, Social, and
Governance) topics that are:

e« relevant to its stakeholders;

o has the potential to impact the
organisation either positively or
negatively;
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The Company engaged in a materiality exercise by identifying internal
and external stakeholders. The insight gathered from diverse stakeholders
including leadership, employees, vendors, customers, confract
employees, investors and analysts, NGOs and CSR partners as well as
research institutes, helped the Company to identify material topics that
have a significant impact on the business.

Key Stakeholders

£ 088 2B 88

Leadership | Employees Vendors Customers Conftract
Employees

SR = Y

Investors NGOs and Industry Research

and Analysts | CSR Partners | Associations Institutes

Prioritisation of
material issues

Identification of
material issues

Identification of material
issues as per industry
standards, global standards
and peer practices

Ranking of the material
issues on the basis of degree
of impact to business and
stakeholders

Materiality matrix Identification of stakeholders

Identification of internal
and external stakeholders
and considering their views
about the material issues

Analysis of the data
collected in the
above steps

Corporate overview
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Out of the 40 material issues identified based on peer practices, industry standards, and global
benchmarks, we have recognised 14 topics that are crucial for our operations.

Following are the material topics impacting Bajaj Electricals:

T ———— 5

Bl i
= = S
i

@,
CEIXID

als influenced

3 Environmental Energy Product Water Supply Chain Waste
‘e Portfolio Management Stewardship Management Management Generation and
2 Recycling
o
o o%o S84 ) Y~
: R O NG
=
E\ e Provide e Animportant « Understand the o Efficient e Dependence | e« Reduce the
g new growth material topic environmental management on suppliers impact of our
£ opportunities due to growing impact of the of water for majority of operations
8 for the demand for products resources products on the
o  Companywith | energy anduse |, Fqcilitate the e Helptobuid | e Ensure environment
= a diversified of electrical Company to climate effective flow | e Save energy,
8 portfolio products manage the resilience of products and ease
g of greener o Need for ecological as water to consumers the burden
5 products optimum impacts of its continues on landfills.
5 o Capitalise on ufilisation of products to become Optimises
E energy efficient| energy to « Develop essential ascarce cost and
products ensureresource | girategies fo resource raw material
and services conservation, reduce the consumption
offered by the climate environmental
Company protection and impact of ifs
cost savings products
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Materiality Assessment (continued...)

Governance

Capitals influenced

&

Capitals influenced

=

o

T BN B2
TN N4

Hatinlin

o) lli"‘

%

Employee Health
& Safety

B

Quality and
Service Delivery

il
il
o—o

Relevance to the Company | Material topics
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e Increase the overall

productivity and
efficiency of the
Company.

o Create asafe
workplace

o Customer safety
and loyalty.

e Improve brand
image

12 'RESPONSIBLE 16 'PEACE. JUSTICE
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ESG Strategy

Envisioning o
Sustainable Future

Bajqj Electricals has utilised the materiality assessment as

a foundation for creating a strategic ESG framework. Our

ESG Strategy serves as a blueprint for seamlessly integrating

ESG considerations into our core business. It plays a crucial

role in establishing a comprehensive roadmap for our future
endeavours. To effectively support our purpose, we have
identified four strategic pillars that form the foundation of our ESG
initiatives. These pillars, in turn, are further strengthened by ten
specific focus areas.

Together, these pillars and focus ]
areas provide us with a robust
structure and clear direction

for effectively addressing and
incorporating ESG factors into our
day-to-day business operations.

1

Vision — Inspiring
Sustainable Living

4

Strategic Pillars

10

Focus Areas
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Strategic Pillars and focus areas with KPls.

@

Empowering Our Team

Preserving the Environment

Corporate overview
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O

Ensuring Safety

o Lost Time Injury
Frequency Rate

« Workplace Safety

&

©

Strengthening
Human Capital

o Diverse and Inclusive
workforce

e ESG Training
o Employee Delight

Unlocking New Possibilities

©

Combating
Climate change

e Energy and
Emissions

« Carbon
Sequestration

o« Climate Risk
Assessment

@%

Guarding Integrity

O

Enhancing
Circularity

« Waste
Management

e Reduce Single
Use Plastic

©

Sustainable
Supply Chain

ESG-specific
Vendor
Assessment

@

Sustainable
Product

o Product Life Cycle
and Innovation

o Sustainable Products

i

Packaging
Responsibly

Eco-friendly Packaging

Q

Guarding
Integrity

e ESG
communication

o Business Ethics

KA
ofe

Engaging with
stakeholders

o Community
Development

¢ Employee
Volunteering Hours

o Inspiring Trust in
Customers

o Inspiring Trust in
Suppliers

¢ Customer
Centricity

)

Respecting
Human Rights

Human Rights
Assessments
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Financi
Capital

At Bajaj Electricals, our endeavour is to f _
prudent capital structure, hg’&l’rhy balance shee
and steady cash flow from operations with fqbus,«
on creating value for all our siakeholders';_w 3
remain committed to invest in. growth opp: rtu
with a risk calibrated approach. To suppOr_
growth endeavours, we seek totake approprldie
measures to adjust our capital structure. We * _-;;_-:-,_
also diligently focus on the return on capital a 33
dividend distribution to maximise shareholder
value.

Material topic linkage

? ],907 crore ? ' 6__ e
Total Equity High t Vi
. B

3 4] ] crore % '- ; .' :

Surplus funds .«

25,429 can

Total Revenue ""’f” :

« Resilient business
model and long-term
profitability
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Financial Capital (continued...)

Our Consumer Products business has surpassed ¥ 3,700 crore in
revenue, while our Lighting Solutions business has experienced
substantial profit growth. Additionally, our EPC business now
stands operationally positive, completing a turnaround after
losses in the previous three years. Our sirategic approach

of selectivity and order quality has ensured profitability at

the project level for the EPC business. We remain resilient,
optimistic and committed to delivering sustainable growth

and profitability in the face of rising commodity prices and
inflationary pressures.

Cash flow generation & deployment

(%in crores)
342
119
450 223
434 39 91 6‘] | j
- 35 35 s
310 23
99 14 11
A I
o 9 O L0 > Q o5 e R x L2 o 4 £ 0 o< o<
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< 0 < 88 & & 0% £% 2 I 5 D 5§ LYg go 80
»9 E [a) <(O g 3 5 < 55 £ < O o= s -66 8 O
) = 3 a9 o o o z
& w = 02 O O T35 0§ ¥ >
=) < b c Qg £
it [a) o) [ONNo)
eI = O e
=)
w
M Increase Decrease
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Managing Capital — Inputs

Lighting Solutions

W.e.f. 1st Jul'22, BEL's segment reporting
underwent changes wherein Lighting
Solutions has been reported as one unified
separate segment encompassing of both
Professional lighting & Consumer lighting

Strong revenue generation of % 5,429 crore

supported by all our businesses, where CP
segment has grown by 13.5%, LS segment by
4.1% and EPC segment by 29.5% during FY'23.

Strong EBIT generation of ¥ 352 crore

supported by all our business, where CP
segment has grown by 9.2%, LS segment by
47.9% and EPC segment turning EBIT positive
during FY'23.

Multiple financing initiatives

to improve working capital cycle across the
value chain (Reverse factoring, Channel
financing, Cooler financing & Warranty
insurance)

Generated cashflow in operations of ¥ 450 crore

due to operating profits and release of
working capital. The capital employed in the
EPC segment has reduced by % 330 crores,
thereby providing a strong impetus o this
cashflow from operations

Portfolio simplification in FY'23

o Completed merger of Starlite Lighting Ltd
o Initiated merger of Nirlep Appliances Pvt Ltd

o Near to completion of Scheme of
Demerger for EPC undertaking

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

Managing Capital — Outcomes

o Strong surplus position of 411 crore
achieved through focused efforts
and actions.

o Beefed up capital expenditure to
the tune of ¥86 crore

o Invested in digitisation and
IT infrastructure to improve
operational efficiencies. (Migrated
to SAP S4 HANA system in FY'23)

e Brandinvestment to the tune of
%135 crore to support business
growth

o Simplified corporate structure

o Proposed a dividend of ¥ 4 per
share in line with the Dividend
Distribution Policy

o« M-cap in excess of 12,000 crore as
on March 31, 2023

Way forward

Maintaining flexible capital
structure in line with the
business needs to support
growth opportunities

Making sound investments
towards the intellectual
capital with a strong focus

on generating healthy
return on investment

Continued focus on
digitisation

Focusing on shareholders’
wealth maximisation
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Manvufactured Capital (continued...)

In the fiscal year, we

have undertaken
initiatives to enhance

our in-house production
capabilities and promote
premiumisation for our
Fans porifolio. By diligently
pursuing capacity
debottlenecking initiatives,
we have ensured that

our manufacturing
processes operate at
optimal levels, enabling
us to meet the growing
demand for our premium
products. Moreover,

our commitment to
sustainable manufacturing
practices has been
unwavering, as we have
embraced Total Productive
Maintenance (TPM) and
focused on enhancing
Overall Equipment
Effectiveness (OEE). These
strategic steps have not
only strengthened our
operational efficiency

but have also reinforced
our dedication

to environmental
stewardship.
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Bajaj Electricals is known for
infroducing an extensive

array of consumer electrical
products, focused on enriching
customer convenience. With
rapid deployment of advanced
technology in our manufacturing
facilities, we continue to undertake
significant design improvements
that help in the production of
the finest products and enable
us to adhere to rigorous quality
parameters.

Our plants too implement
sustainable manufacturing
practices that are directed to
minimise our impact on the
environment. We also continue
tfo undertake efforts to enhance
operational efficiency while
ensuring optimum resource

ufilisation. These steps have also
helped us to achieve significant
cost efficiencies across the
manufacturing process.

Improved operations

At Bajaj Electricals, we remain
committed to ensuring
manufacturing excellence through
operational efficiency. We have
strengthened our operations
through Total Productive
Maintenance (TPM) and effective
cost management. We have

an effective system of resolving
challenges through revised

and new business models and
restructuring of cross functional
activities and improving Overall
Equipment Effectiveness (OEE).

Inspection at manufacturing plants

To ensure product quality and durability we have strengthened process

inspection at every stage with

100% product
inspection at

final line

Performance
and reliability
tests to ensure
functional quality

Finished goods
sampling audit
for missing parts
and product
aesthetics

Our manufacturing facilities

Ranjangaon plant

-

Products

r o

36,200 s 28,007 wr

Installed capacity Annual production

Capacity
utilisation

77%
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Chakan plant

8,23,680

units per annum
Installed capacity

4,10,092

Annual production

27,00,000

units per annum
Installed capacity

18,97,950

Annual production

Capacity e In January 2023, the Chakan
utilisation facility reached a record-
breaking production level of
/ 273,000 fans, marking its highest
output for the month.

e The Chakan Fan Factory has
infroduced a cutting-edge paint
shop capable of handling up to
325,000 fans each month.

e The fan factory has also
established a state-of-the-art
assembly line with an impressive
fotal capacity of 400,000 fans
each month.
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Manvufactured Capital (continued...)

Nashik Plant

Products

Aurangabad Plant

Products

Focus on Total Productive
Maintenance (TPM)

We have incorporated Total
Productive Maintenance (TPM)
across our operations to inculcate
a comprehensive approach

fo equipment maintenance.

It aims to maximise the overall
effectiveness and efficiency

of manufacturing plants. TPM
helps to regulate maintenance
activities efficiently, reduces
downtime and optimises
productivity. It has resulted in
considerable cost savings by
minimising repair costs, extending
the life of equipment and

Digital adaptation

The implementation of
Manufacturing Execution
Systems (MES) and digitisation

of the production process has
improved efficiency, productivity,
and overall performance of

our plants. The integration of
sophisticated fechnology and
automated systems across our
operations is also expected to

optimise our production workflow,

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
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increase real-time monitoring of
systems and enable seamless
data exchange across the
manufacturing ecosystem.

With rapid adoption of digital
capabilities at our manufacturing
plants, we aim to create a
connected and intelligent factory
environment, capable of quickly
adapting to changes in market
dynamics, reducing downtime,
improving product quality and
streamlining operations.

() g5
(2 N
(4880,

39,00,000 19,02,007

units per annum units per annum
Installed capacity Annual production

Our emphasis on promoting a safe

working environment has led to a

remarkable achievement of zero
incidents in FY 2023.

reducing energy consumption.

U
Mixers

1,18,80,000 67,44,637 Capacity -+ The plant achieved the
units per annum units per annum utilisation milestone of manufacturing Emphasis
Installed capacity Annual production 78,000 Pressure Cookers in on safety
September 2022
Capacity « The plant produced 60,000 49%
utilisation LED bulbs in a single day in \
February 2023

e |trecorded the highest
number of storage water
heater production of
60,000 units, in September
2022

Manager has been
appointed for each
plant, to oversee
and prioritise safety
measures and
ensure a proactive
Chakan plant to approach towards

further enhance mitigating potential
safety measures at risks.

the site.

A dedicated Safety

We have also
implemented a
safety training
module, designed
fo cater to the
specific needs of the
workforce.

A firefighting
system is being
installed at the
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Manvufactured Capital (continued...)

0

Minor accidents at Chakan

278.6 mg/I|

ETP TDS Value at
Chakan

60.5 mg/I|

STP-COD at Chakan

Embedding sustainability in our

operations

We are making significant strides
to reduce environmental impact
and enhance efficiency as

part of our ongoing efforts to
integrate sustainability info our
operations. Through responsible
resource management, utilisation
of renewable energy sources
and a sharp focus on employee
health and safety, we are setting
new industry benchmarks for
sustainable practices.
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38

First Aid Injury at Chakan

1 9.5 mg/I

STP-BOD at Chakan

21 .3 mg/I

ETP BOD at Chakan

64.4 mg/I

ETP COD at Chakan

1 5.2 mg/I|

STP- TSS at Chakan

Initiatives implemented during FY23:

Built a Zero Liquid Discharge
(ZLD) plant to recycle efluent
within the manufacturing
process. We are also reusing
the paint shop wastewater
after recycling.

All our plants comply with
the Pollution Control Board’s
(PCB) guidelines for e-waste
disposal and overall waste
management.

Installed Variable Frequency
Drives on two robotic cranes
for energy opftimisation,
currently under monitoring and
evaluation.

Changed water taps in
washrooms and reused water
for plantations to optimise
water usage.

Corporate overview
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Installed new solar panels
to lower greenhouse gas
emissions. At our plants, we
also focus on the effective
surveillance and upkeep of
existing panels.

Launched awareness
campaigns via emails and
verbal announcements to
encourage our personnel to
adopt sustainable practices.

Way forward

In the upcoming year, we
plan on scaling up our
digitalisation initiatives
and the implementation
of the Manufacturing
Execution System (MES) at
the Chakan factory.

Through advanced
machine learning
algorithms and predictive

analytics, we aim to
improve our capacity
utilisation.

To lower our carbon
footprint and enhance
product efficiency, we
intend to revamp our
manufacturing processes
by incorporating

green technology and
sustainable practices.
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Intellectual Capital (continued...)

Our relentless
pursuit of product
innovation has led
us to continuously
adapt to new-age
processes and
embrace advanced
technologies to
develop products
with best-in-class
features. Our
commitment to
excellence drives us
to create products
that are truly 'BUILT
FOR LIFE." With a
strong focus on
energy efficiency
and the adoption
of emerging
technologies, we
strive to deliver
solutions that
enhance the lives
of our customers
and contribute to a
sustainable future.
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Emphasis on Research &
Development

At Bajaj Electricals, the tireless
efforts of our R&D team empower
us to sustain our performance in a
dynamic market. Keeping product
innovation at the core, we are
adapting to new-age processes,
adopting advanced technologies
and sharpening our skillset to render
functionally superior products.

It not only enables us to retain

a competitive edge but, also
opens up new opportunities for
sustainable progress.

To further strengthen our R&D
capabilities, we rely on our Product
Research Centre (PRC), Centre

of Excellence and Design Quality
departments within the R&D
division. It not only allows us to
diversify our portfolio further, but
also provides an opportunity to

add efficiency to our operations.
Besides, the adoption of advanced-
technologies, deployment of physics
based engineering and reliability
simulations and Programme Lifecycle
Management (PLM) for all our R&D
projects help us to infroduce best-in-
class products to the market on time.

At Bajqj Electricals, we conduct
extensive research to identify
market trends, gaps, and
opportunities before launching

the products. The R&D team also
carries out markeft visits to idenfify
consumer preferences for various
products and regularly benchmarks
products against industry peers fo
stay up-to-date with latest trends.

In the fiscal year 2022-23, we have
infroduced 678 new products
consisting of 165 in Consumer
Products and in 513 Lighting
Solutions divisions.

Products ‘BUILT FOR LIFE’

With the 'BUILT FOR LIFE' brand positioning in mind, our R&D team confinues
fo upgrade and innovate products in ferms of design, features, quality
and price point. Our constant focus on testing and analysing products at
every stage of the product lifecycle enables us to incorporate changes
effectively. It also enables us fo maintain a steady product pipeline of new

and innovative products.

The following products were recently infroduced to fulfil the assurance of
'‘BUILT FOR LIFE' across various categories:

Anti-dust solar
AlO luminaire

Stadium light with
DMX control 9

Tunnel light with p
automation

LED Highbay with
5 years warranty

DuraCut blade with lifetime
warranty in mixer grinders

Dura Ace tanks
with 10 years
warranty in storage
water heaters

-

DuraMarine

~ Pump with two
v years warranty
P in coolers

~

Ceiling fans with three
years warranty

Corporate overview
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These products address consumer concerns and help to create a distinguished portfolio. To assure the highest
standards of quality, our products are tested and approved by NABL/ DSIR accredited labs, export certified labs
such as Bureau Veritas, TUV Rheinland, and BIS recognised labs.

Energy efficient products

Our efforts to ensure sustainability is demonstrated through our emphasis on the production of energy-efficient
products. To meet the stringent regulations for energy star labelling, our R&D team confinues to offer innovative
ideas for developing products that minimise energy consumption.

Water storage heater
BEE Star Rated

Ceiling fans
BEE Star Rated

It has efficient heating elements with
a dual safety system (Thermostat and
Thermal Cutout) to conserve energy.

We have developed efficient motors with
compact design blades to reduce the
use of electricity.
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Intellectual Capital (continued...)

Induction cooktop, microwave oven
Star Rated

The optimised design of the main PCB, heating
elements and sensors of the induction cooktop
helps to reduce energy consumption. Similarly,
the microwave's heating element, Magnetron
and fans ensure energy efficiency.

LED Luminaire

Bajaj developed LED luminaire in the Indoor and
Outdoor categories, ensuring highest energy
efficiency in the market.
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LED Bulb
Star Rated

We have developed 5 star rated LED
bulbs that are BIS registered.

Innovate and rise

At Bajaj Electricals, we have established a culture
of innovation and with the vision of enhancing
the quality of life and ensuring sustainability,

we collaborate with partners to develop new
concepts that make way for consumer delight.

43 3

Total number of
innovative ideas
received

Innovative ideas
adopted

4

Innovative ideas under
evaluation

Awards and recognition

We have bagged a number of prestigious awards during FY 2023, for
designing innovative products and solutions.

Golden Peacock Innovative
Product Award

Indiastar Packaging Award for
innovative packaging of stadium
light and Juvel Mixer Grinder

WorldStar Packaging Award for
stadium light packaging design

Product of the Year Award

for Morphy Richards Digichef
Microwave and Morphy Richards
Kube storage water heaters

Corporate overview
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Good Design Award for Morphy

Richards Kube storage water heater

Smart solutions

Embracing technological
advancements, we are
developing various intelligent
solutions that will substantially
boost our productivity and ensure
resource efficiency.

Smart Office Solutions

During the pandemic, we began
developing smart office solutions.
Our aim was to build comfortable
and safe workspaces. To achieve
this, we infroduced our Workplace
Management System, which is

a fusion of smart devices and
software platforms that optimises
the use of workplace resources
and effectively manages
infrastructure and facility assets.

Connected Factory: - (Industry 4.0)

1. By monitoring and discussion
making level Reports for Nirlep
factory.

2. By showing the administrative
hierarchy basis dashboard
the factory performance is
increased.

Guest House Meeting Room

Hotdesking
(seat allocations)

Booking Management
Material Visitor
Management Management
System Solution
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Intellectual Capital (continued...)

Key performance indicators give
the prominent result to increase
the performance from lower to
higher management.

Implementation a smart factory

Smart factory initiative driving:

1. Integration:
a. Horizontal integration

i. Through value networks
are now facilitate inter
-corporation Collaboration.

i. New Value Networks and
Servers are implemented on
Factory Level.

iii. PLC and HMI interface are
evaluated and installed
inside the Nirlep factory.

b. Vertical integration Int

i. A Factory owns several
physical and informational
subsystems, such as Actuator
and Sensor, Control,
Production Management
and Manufacturing etc.

ii. Itis essential to Vertical
intfegration of PLC and sensor
signals across various levels.

2. Cyber and Property Security:

a. All the data that sends
from the Factory to cloud is
encrypted.

b. VAPT and Security Tests are runs
as per the BEL security policies.

3. Conclusions and Future Work:

a. With the emerging
information technologies,
such as loT, big data, and
cloud computing together
with Artificial intelligence
technologies, we believe the
smart factory of Industry 4.0
can be implemented.
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b. Smart machines and
products can communicate
and negotiate with each
other to reconfigure
themselves for flexible
production of mulfiple types
of products.

c. The KPIs that are provided
by the dashboard is
extremely important for the
decision making for higher
management.

Benefits: -

e The smart factory helps
to implement sustainable
production mode in order to
overcome global challenges.

e |t can lead fo novel business
modes and even affect
our lifestyle. Although the
implementation of smart
factory is still facing some
technical challenges,

e |t can lead to novel business
modes and even affect our
lifestyle. The implementation
of smart factory is still facing
some technical challenges,

e We are onright path by
simultfaneously applying
the existing fechnologies
and promoting technical
advancements. Along with
existing technologies, some
application demonstrations
have already been built.
Therefore, the smart factory
and the Industry 4.0 can be
implemented in a progressive
way with the unstopped
technical advancements. In
the future, we will continue
to develop our prototype
design and focus on the key
enabling technologies.

Cyber security and IT monitoring

The Company's operations are
increasingly dependent on IT
systems and the management
of data / information. There

is confinuous increase threat

of cyber-attack threat of
unauthorised access and

misuse of sensitive information

or disruption to operations. Any
such an aftack could inhibit our
business operations in a number
of ways, including disruption fo
sales, production and cash flows,
ultimately impacting our results.
Also with increase in our digital
intferactions with customers,
suppliers, and consumers, business
need for secure and reliable

IT infrastructure and careful
management of the information
that is in our possession to ensure
data privacy.

Accelerated pace of digitisation
of our operations also gives rise to
the need to proactively detect
and mitigate risks arising from
technological advancements such
as deployment of Al, Robotics
Process Automation, Machine
Learning.

To reduce the impact of external
cyber-attacks impacting our
business, we have deployed
firewalls and threat monitoring
systems in place, complete with
immediate response capabilities
to mitigate identified threats. We
also maintain a robust system

for the control and reporting of
access to our critical IT systems.
This is supported by an annual
programme of testing of access
controls. We have implemented
policies covering the protection
of both business and personal
information, as well as the use of
IT systems and applications by our

employees. We also have a set of
IT security standards and closely
monitor their operation to protect
our systems and information. We
are moving all systems and data
to cloud by next year. Robust
and scalable system architecture
with multfi-level redundancy, is
built on the cloud that allows real

fime data replication capability.
This ensures system resilience
including minimum downtime of
the systems and minimum to zero
data loss in case of any disaster.
We have standardised ways of
hosting information on our public
websites and have systems in

Corporate overview
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place to monitor compliance

with appropriate privacy laws

and regulations, and with our

own policies. We are increasingly
putting in place review and
monitoring frameworks for new
age automations to assess inherent
open risks and mifigate the same.

Digital transformations

With over half of India's population
using the internet, the nation
leads in global mobile data
consumption. We have embarked
on a digital fransformation
journey to strengthen our digital
backbone with Nysa 2.0. The focus
on becoming intelligent enterprise
will enable us fo create a tech-
powered and human-centric
solutions.

We recognise the necessity of
upgrading our digital capabilities
by successfully implementing
multiple SAP solutions meefing
complex needs of business and
emerging needs — from sourcing
to manufacturing; from innovation
fo marketing to reaching our

consumers through omni-channels.

Our objective is to employ best-
in-class technologies such as Al,
ML, Robotic Process Automation,
security systems and advanced
analytics, to develop a tech-
powered and data-driven digital
enterprise.

¢ We have embarked our journey
on big data and analytics as a
tool fo drive sustainable growth.
Our data lake is setup on AWS
with single source of truth

deployed with PowerBI analytics.

* We have deployed product
lifecycle management
solutions to manage product
infroductions and changes
to configurations in order to
keep pace with advances
in fechnology and fierce
competition.

e Smart Factories initiatives
with Industry loT driving the
efficiencies and reducing costs.

« We are leveraging technology
fo cater to our digitally active
retailers through the retailer
loyalty programme.

¢ Driving technology to connect
with our extended partners
— vendors, distributors, super-
stockists fo manage the business
seamlessly.

¢ Robofic Process Automation
(RPA) has enabled the
automation of repetitive,
rule-based tasks, freeing our
workforce to focus on other
major business aspects.

ABORATORY

HI-TEGH L
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Intellectual Capital (continued...)

BEL CitiSol Key Highlights

We have designed a new business
model ‘BEL CitiSol’ which is an
embodiment of our shift from
fraditional box-selling to a holistic
solution-oriented approach.

BEL CitiSol is a platform for the
lighting industry, designed fo
offer a connected and loT-based
experience to our B2B customers.
Serving key stakeholders such as
Smart City initiafives, Urban Local
Bodies (ULBs) and government
projects, Commercial Building,
MFG Industries we are enabling
the transformation of public
infrastructure through digital
innovation.

Holistic Solution
Provider

Energy Operational
- =
Promises up to a
50% improvement
in operational
efficiency, allowing -.
our customers

d )

4I
4I

Provides best-in-
class technologies,
delivering up to 80%
energy efficiency.

Strong secure PKi
stack
v

ISO27000
environment.

Offers comprehensive
smart solutions for
city lighting using loT
technology.

fo optimise their
operations.

Confributor to
Smart Cities

F

v

Actively driving the
development of smart
cities by enabling
digital fransformation
on a national scale.

N,

_f

\

—
i
o
~

il

Offerings;

Smart utility pole

Erens corielze culidser BEL CloT — (consumer loT Platform)

lighting BEL CloT is a Consumer loT Platform | Key Features
developed to enhance the
customer experience. This platform
enables customers to confrol and
monitor Bajaj Consumer Products,

providing a user-friendly, digital

Individual controlled outdoor

[fe]alilgle] Purchase of BLE+wifi

New Products

Connection
to Product
Services

Control and

Monitoring

Tunnel lighting

Energy monitoring modules

Indoor smart lighting with interface for managing these v v v v
HVAC integration. products. In addition to controlling Users can The platform BEL CloT based
and monitoring capabilities, the effectively bridges the facilitates the consumer
platform connects consumers manage their gap between | buying process, products.
& with product services for ease of products, and customers allowing
access and maintenance. receive real- and product customers to
Communication Technology: fime updates services, purchase new
: about devices. ensuring easy Bajaj products
NBIloT access to directly through

LoRa

RF - Zigbee - Mesh
GSM

BLE — Mesh
CANBUS, MODBUS
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30+

IT team members

10+ years

Average experience

support and
mainfenance.

the platform
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Intellectual Capital (continued...)

Adoption of emerging technologies

With constant evolution of
tfechnology, we aspire to
reimagine product usage with
the implementation of emerging
technologies such as Arfificial
Intelligence (Al), Internet of
Things (loT), robotics etc. We are
deploying technology to develop
smarter products and solutions
across our business verticals.

Alongside, we have implemented
SAP across our facilities to

ensure befter tracking of cost
and inventory. This has reduced
mainfenance issues, improved

energy ufilisation and productivity.
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Smart lighting solutions

In the B2B division, we undertook a smart indoor lighting automation

project to facilitate an energy-efficient and cost-effective way to light up
commercial and industrial spaces. The initiatives taken in FY 2023 include

the following:

Smart utility NBloT based
pole outdoor lighting
Energy

monitoring LoRa based
modules outdoor lighting

BLE+wifi based
consumer
products such as
bulbs and battens

Tunnel
lighting

Innovation across business units

Windhill technology

We have adopted Windhill, a new
platform for product life cycle
management. Its PLM software
offers a comprehensive solution for
managing product lifecycles, from
design to end-of-life processes. The
programme is infended to help
optimise operations, reduce costs,
and improve product quality and
compliance standards.

Narrowband Internet of Things
(NBloT)

We have started implementing
Narrowband Internet of Things
(NBloT), a communication
technology used in outdoor
lighting solutions. It is a wireless
communication technique

that allows long-distance
communication among devices
powered by Internet of Things (loT)
fechnology. It is a low-power wide-
area network (LPWAN) technology
that runs on the wireless spectrum's
restricted bandwidth. It provides
various advantages, including
lower power consumption,
increased coverage, and
improved indoor penetration,
making it ideal for a variety of loT
applications in smart cities, smart
homes, and industries.

Smart pole technology

At Bajaj Electricals, we have
adopted the smart pole
fechnology to infegrate advanced
features in street poles, with the
addition of sensors, cameras,

and communication devices, to

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
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make them suitable for a variety
of services and applications.
This technology enables cost
saving, generates more revenue
and helps in better infrastructure
management.

BLE mesh technology

We are using BLE mesh technology
for consumer products used in
smart homes, lighting systems, and
wearables. With this technology,
each connected device within the
network can communicate with
each other, allowing more efficient
and reliable communication.

It also aids in lowering power
consumption, enhancing
scalability and flexibility of devices.
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Intellectual Capital (continued...)

Marketing and Branding

We have leveraged digital media for branding and advertising, focusing on social media platforms such

as Facebook, Instagram and YouTube. This strategy is backed by advanced analytics, collective company
experience and continuous market research. We repositioned ourselves as BUILT FOR LIFE, resonating with the
millennial/Gen Z consumer and highlighting durability and endurance as the brand promise.

Morph
Rich%rgs

Nirlep Morphy Richards

Key campaigns and marketing initiatives include:

e Our Diwali repositioning campaign e Our campaigns reached
resulted in a 7.4% lift in awareness approximately 33 million people.

Running a successful . . :
and a 3.4% lift in consideration on

social media contest

Conducting a
repositioning

Collaborating
with a renowned

Utilising influencer

marketing and working e We achieved a higher VIR than

agency for strategic
communication
planning and
implementation

Conducting targeted
social media
campaigns for
receptive cohorts and
international brand
enthusiasts

Key highlights

with popular influencers
like Chef Kunal Kapur,
Chef Vismai, Sukhmani
Gambhir and Pearle
Mane.

Using in-store branding
and merchandising to
boost brand recall

campaign post the
Diwali season, 69
million people reached
through the Digital
campaign

Incorporating
performance
marketing and
strengthening
e-commerce presence
for better conversions
in overseas markets

for Nirlep during Diwali,

garnering over 450
entries

Collaborating with
third-party agencies
and conducting
primary and
secondary research to
stay abreast of market
frends

ﬁ BUILT FOR LIFE

BAJAJ

Facebook.

anticipated, ranging from 6% to 11%.

e Nirlep's Instagram contfest during
Diwali reached over 3 million users

with over 7 million impressions,

increasing our followers by 11.3%.

Way forward

Address consumer needs
by developing innovative

and cost-effective products,

centred around solving
customer pain points.

Strengthen in-house R&D
for more unique and
competitive product
offerings, while also building
a robust IP portfolio.

Strategically monitor and
adjust to volatile raw material
prices to optimise costs without
compromising quality.

Increase focus on smart
lighting solutions, especially in
outdoor lighting and infroduce
new loT and smart solutfion
products for indoor decorative
lighting.

Customise SKUs to improve
inventory management,
while catering to diverse
customer requirements.

Sustain market leadership
by consistently delivering
high-quality, innovative and
energy-efficient products.

e The digital share of ADEXrose to ¢ Generated 1,149 million
38%, with Digital Video's ADEX impressions, surpassing our
share reaching 30%. estimated target by 13%.

e Our digital interventions e Created over 80 informative
garnered an impressive 524 videos for distribution across
million consumers across social media and e-commerce
multimedia campaigns. platforms.

¢ We achieved an outstanding
overall Video Through Rate
(VIR) of 81%, exceeding industry
benchmarks.
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Human Capital (continued...)

We focus on nurturing a future-ready talent pool that not only possesses
the skills and capabilities to thrive in a dynamic operating environment
but also embodies strong leadership qualities and embraces unified team
efforts. Our culture of consistent learning ensures that our personnel are
equipped with the requisite tools and knowledge to adapt and excel in
an ever-evolving industry. We recognise exceptional performances and
foster an environment where every individual has equal opportunities

to grow and succeed. Being certified as a Great Place to Work® for the
third consecutive year bears testimony to our commitment to being an
employer of choice.

Three pillars have served as the foundation of Bajaj Electricals’ HR practices:

Creating a 'YX X 4 Diversity ﬁ\ Employee
future-ready ﬂﬂm and equall v wellness and
[.\ organisation opportunity w safety

Building a future-ready
talent pool

At Bajaj Electricals, we believe in atftracting 5 9 0
and retaining the right talent through an
efficient hiring process that entails multi-
layered evaluation procedures. To build a
stronger falent pool, we are emphasising

on the addition of young talent with diverse
perspectives. Our campus programmes,
including SPRINT (Management Trainee
Programme), Sales Management Associate
Programme and Graduate Engineer Training,
are intended to develop an aspirational
talent pool within the organisation. In FY23,
we employed 6 management frainees from
Tier Il institutions and 6 GETs for our plants.
Additionally, the SMA programme was
reinfroduced to atfract people interested in a
career in Sales.

New employees hired
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Enhanced onboarding experience

The organisation has streamlined
the onboarding experience
through the 'Welcome Onboard'
Programme. The programme
focuses on the first 30-60-90 days
of new hires and instils in managers
and the HR feam members, a
sense of collective responsibility.
On the first day of work, the new
hire receives a welcome kit that
includes a laptop, an ID card and
other relevant materials, as well as
HR and team induction. Over the

period of 30-60 days, HRBP and the
management ensure goal setting,
tfeam and culture alignment. After
90 days, the management and
newly hired employees engage

in a pre-confirmation coaching
conversation. Additionally, all

new hires participate in a rigorous
group induction programme,
‘Anugam’, whereby they interact
with their respective Function
Heads affer 120 days.

375

New hires attended Anugam in
FY 2023 - the Corporate Induction
Programme

Training and development

To nurture a culture of continuous
learning, we have infroduced
several fraining and development
programmes for our people.
During the year under review,

we conducted training sessions
focused on functional and
behavioural development of
employees. Also, programmes
including finance for non-finance,
digital marketing, confract
management and negotiation,
compliances, diversity and
inclusion and managerial
capability development were
organised.

We have also partnered with Korn
Ferry Consulting to design our
internal assessments, individual
development plans and group
learning programmes. This
intervention has led to successful
leadership development within the
organisation.

52,096

Manhours of training during
FY 2023

84" Annual Report 2022-23| 75



Human Capital (continued...)

Catapult programme

At Bajaj Electricals, we are
committed to raising the
managerial efficiency of our
people. The Catapult programme
has been created to foster strong
leadership, encourage unified
team effort and build a diverse
workforce. This programme

also aims to enhance the self-
management and performance
management skills of our
managers.

Managers attended the Catapult
fraining programme in FY 2023
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Pygmalion

It is a high performer- high
potential development
programme for the top 5%
talent within the organisation.
The programme spans over
10-11 months and focuses on
developing top talent for critical
roles within our organisation.

Digital Learning

Our online learning platform,
Welearn, hosts over 240 courses
ranging from Compliance,

Behavioural & Functional courses,

for employees. It includes
inferactive, customised confent,
curated as per specific needs
(Compliance trainings, Goal
Setting, ESOPs, Finance for Non-
Finance, etc.) as well as off-the-
shelf content subscribed from
learning partners like Skilldom,
Actuate and Percipio. These
are part of the e-learning library
which can be accessed by the

employees for skill enhancement.

Driving Peak
Performance

It was conceived with a focus

on the Growth mindset of our
Plant leadership team. Group
learning, individual development
plans and coaching exercises
were conducted as part of this
programme.

Sukarak

It is a peer-to-peer learning
programme where selected
employees are trained to facilitate
in-house sessions on functional
and behavioural topics. We

have developed a pool of 28 in-
house facilitators, across different
functions, to deliver programmes
on various modules.

Compliance &
ESG training

A series of compliance trainings
were conducted with a focus

on POSH, Code of Conduct,
Whistleblower and Insider Trading
policy. In addition, more than
25% employees attended ESG
awareness sessions conducted
by Sukaraks.
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It is through our integrated employee engagement system and focused development
opportunities that we ensure strong output generation and employee efficiency.

Organisation redesign

During FY2023, we reviewed

our organisation structure and
re-aligned functions to create
stronger synergies within the
Company. Along with

streamlining the functions of
various business verticals, it helped
to improve decision making and
empowered employees to aim for
meaningful growth.

Digitalisation to improve employee
experience

SAP SF has been employed to
stfreamline and automate HR
processes and improve employee
experience. The platform offers
real-fime data on the employee
journey and serves as a single
source for accessing employee
data. The manufacturing plants
are also being added fo the
module.

Outcomes of digitalisation

The digital hiing method has
ensured a reduction of lead
fime from 3 days to a single day

Comprehensive e-learning
platforms to ensure skill
enhancement

Self-service access to
employees for policies,
compensation, performance
management information

Improved onboarding
experience for new joiners

Fostering consistent employee
engagement

We believe, employee
engagement is key to operational
excellence and therefore,
undertake several employee-
engagement initiatives. At Bajqj
Electricals, we also provide diverse
growth opportunities through
platforms such as the Mulya
programme that allow employees
to be a part of the cross-functional
teams. Our feams can use these
platforms to ideate new concepfs,
solve business challenges and
enrich their skills further by
engaging with colleagues from

different departments. Additionally,

our people are offered the cross-
functional projects fo provide
exposure to critical roles. We

also encourage fairness in our
appraisal system to provide equal
opportunities to every individual.
This has enhanced employee
retention in the long run.

Bajaj Got Talent

Our in-house employee
engagement programme
encourages the workforce to
participate in various talent shows,
sports events and celebrations.
Under this initiative, we also
conduct regular health check-ups
for our people.

Rewarding outstanding performance

We acknowledge the contribution
of our people and recognise
exceptional performances through
various reward programmes. We
offer instant appreciation through
Spotlight cards, Quarterly Prizes
and Annual Achieverz Awards.
Through these endeavours,

we aspire to appreciate the
remarkable contribution of our
employees while upholding
organisational values. We have

a special category of awards
designed to recognise the best
cross functional teams who

have significantly impacted the
Company'’s strategic initiatives.

A Great Place to Work®

Bajaj Electricals has been certified
as a Great Place to Work®, for the
third consecutive year. We are also
proud to be featured in the list of
Top 50 Organisations with Great
Managers by People Business. Our
MD and CEO was awarded the
Man of Small Appliances Award
by CEAMA and our CFO was
recognised as the Best CFO at the
Finance Strategy Award in the éth
edifion of Business World CFO World.

Employees take pride in their
affiliation with the organisation
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Human Capital (continued...)

Diversity and inclusion

Our commitment to be an

equal opportunity employer
drives us to hire candidates from
diverse backgrounds. We do

not discriminate on the basis of
caste, creed, religion, gender,
nationality or physical capability.
With a focus on merit-based
recruitment processes, we also
strive to maintain a healthy gender
diversity within the organisation.

8%

Women employees
(Excl. factories)

Ramps at the
HO to ease
mobility of
differently-abled
employees.

STEPUP:
Empowering our
women employees

The STEPUP platform, which aims to foster a sense of trust and belonging through
various sessions and interactions with female leaders across sectors, is positively
impacting the organisation. Approximately 150 female co-workers, across all business
verticals, have been engaged through this platform.
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D&l council

D&l Council

The D&l council consists of both
men and women in leadership
positions. The representation by
both men and women ensures
that there is diversity of views &
buy-in on decisions.

Women Centric Policies

Women centric policies focussing
on flexibility were rolled out during
the year. The new policies focus

on flexible work timings to support
maternity and health related
requirements. To enable safe travel
for women employees, additional
policies were rolled out including
fravel support during odd travel
hours and outstation journey.

Employee Sensitisation

A self- paced e learning module
was launched to sensitise
employees on Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion. Around 800 employees
completed the module and
assessments. In addition, the
managers of women employees
also attended workshop on DEI
specially curated to sensitise and
build skills in the managers to make
the workplace inclusive.

Employee Resource Group

A cross functional feam of women
employees were nominated to
ideate and implement changes
fo enhance the experience

of women employees in the
organisation. This feam function
as change agents and drive D&
inifiatives at organisation and
business levels.

Engagement Initiatives
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Step Up Workshops

Workshops focussing on topics
related to career accelerators
were organised. The sessions on
Lean In Leap Out, Crafting Brand
You, The art of networking and
influence and Power dressing
and styling were attended by all
women employees.

Women's Day celebration on March 8 is a special moment for all

women employees. Organisation appreciated their contribution and
uniqueness in form of small celebration and presenting a personalised
hamper. In addition, women conclave was organised were all women
employees from all locations travelled to Mumbai Head office location
and attended the conclave. The purpose of conclave was to seek
inputs and ideas from women employees on action areas. Followed by
conclave, women employees also attended foundation day celebration

“Sarvottam Diwas”.
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Human Capital (contfinued...)

Employee Safety and Well-Being

Excellence in EHS is essential to
Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)
success. At Bajaj Electricals, we
place utmost priority on the health
and well-being of our people.

Our Nasik & Ranjangaon plants
are ISO 45001:2018 certified. Our
plant heads as well as a safety
committee regularly fracks safety
parameters to ensure optimum
results. Immediate actions are faken
in case of any deviation from the
acceptable safety standards. Our
Safety plans include opportunities to
reduce serious and fatal incidents,
ensuring and maintaining safety
legal compliances, safe working
environment, ensuring employees
engagement. Our plans are
focusing on top 5 hazards which
includes (Electricals, Falls, Vehicle
movement, Powered Machines,
Liffing)

For us Safety is a value which Bajaj
Electricals will not compromise.
We are committed to ensuring
the health, safety and welfare

of our employees, as well as all
key stakeholders including but

not limited to agency workers,
contractors and visitors coming to
our sites, offices and factories. Our
Safety Objective is to achieve zero
severe accident. For achieving
safety objective each employee
is Complying with BEL safety rules
and local regulations . We STOP
any activity that deviates from
Safety Rules. We Train our staff
and stakeholders to apply safety
standards and instructions at work.
We report new risks and safety
violation in EHS management
system.

At Bajaj Electricals risk assessments
are performed. We ensured our
primary risk associated with work
place are addressed on priority.
We adopted Hazard Identification
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Risk Assessment (HIRA) technique
to identify the risks associated with
specific equipment.

Safety awareness and
communication is important to
ensure standards are implemented
properly. We conduct regular
campaigns on road safety, EHS
induction training, Safety alerts,
generic and risk based EHS
frainings. These safety programmes
are organised across all business
verticals and departments.
Training on Hazards and their
associated risk is an important

part of Bajaj Electricals employee
expectations. There are 85 safety
related topics in which 461 training
sessions were conducted.

To ensure safety at work, we
conduct annual EHS assessments
at our factories, warehouses,
Project sites, offices. This EHS
assessment is a process in

which our sites and facilities are
evaluated to identify opportunities
and to recognize excellence.
EHS Team consolidates site
results to identify and prioritize
actions which support and

uplift site performance, training

needs and cross site mentoring
opportunities. We proactively
monitor leading indicators
including safety employees
engagement. We track the rate
of employees participating in
safety opportunities. Our action
fracking system helps us in closing
these safety opportunities. Our
focus is very clear, we want to
franslate these opportunities intfo
risk reduction actions.

As part of safety strategy Bajaj
Electricals launched its first
Safety survey in 2022. It help us
in measuring employees safety
engagement identify safety
opportunities and to develop
future safety initiatives.

461

EHS trainings were conducted

29

Mock drills

ISO 45001:2018

Certification for EPC BU

Enhanced safety for EPC

Our power transmission and
distribution sites have been
recognised as crifical sites.
Dedicated EHS officials are
present at all the sites to ensure
compliance with legal and
associated standards. Workers
regularly receive training on the
importance of safety and other
concerns such as risk assessment,
high-risk activity, firefighting, the
use of PPE and first aid. They are
also provided appropriate PPE to
ensure their safety. Additionally,
a work permit system has been
developed to prevent the
occurrence of unauthorised or
unsupervised operations at the
workplace. To ensure occupational
safety, EHS managers undertake
cross-regional safety audits, the
results of which are shared with the
fop management.

Zero

Fatal accidents during
FY 2023
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Safety is a never-ending journey.
In 2023 safety will be enhanced by
strengthening our safety expertise
in process and product design.

Human Rights

We place great emphasis on
respecting, safeguarding and
upholding the human rights of alll
people. To provide a safe and
comfortable working environment,
we have strengthened our human
rights policies and encourage
employees to report grievances
related to the organisation or any
other pertinent issues.

Our policies
+ Code of Conduct policy
*  Whistle Blower policy

 POSH policy

Approximately 10% of the employees in the organisation are members
of the union. This allows employees to easily communicate with top
management through the union, facilitating mutually beneficial decision-

making for the organisation.

Way forward

e« Maintain a zero accident
record and prioritise safety
measures.

Ensure compliance with

regulations and standards.

Provide employees with
learning and development
opportunities to enhance
their career progression and
leadership abilities.

Enhance employee
satisfaction through various
initiatives.

Increase the representation
of women in senior
management positions.

Create value for all
stakeholders and cultivate
a positive and inclusive
work environment.
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Social and Relationship Capital (continued...)

We believe in the power of social inclusivity and its profound impact on
creating a harmonious society. Through our CSR initiatives, we remain

committed to providing specialised healthcare services to our local

communities. We make quality education accessible to children, ensuring
that no child is left behind in their pursuit of knowledge. Moreover, to foster
the growth of new-age entrepreneurs, we conduct vocational training

programmes that equip them with relevant industry skills.

Committed to meaningful
change

We understand our responsibility
tfowards people and the

society af large. It guides us to
undertake meaningful initiatives
that are aimed at uplifting local
communities and conftributing
tfowards economic development.
With a focus on environmental
sustainability, promotion of health
and education and dedicated
community development

efforts, we remain motivated

to strengthen relationships with
diverse stakeholders including
people, communities, government
and regulatory authorities.

Bajaj Electricals Foundation (BEF)

We have established the Bajagj
Electricals Foundation (BEF),

a trust that serves as both the
corporate social responsibility
(CSR) and philanthropic arm
of Bajaj Electricals Ltd. Our
commitment lies in building
enduring and sustainable
partnerships and programmes.
We consistently undertake
community development
initiatives through BEF, ensuring
their effective implementation and
development.
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Key focus areas

Ensuring
Environmental
Sustainability
& promoting
Education

Be

Promotion of
Education,
Vocational
skills and
Livelihood
Generation

&

Promoting
Preventive
Health Care

A®)
8}

Promoting
Indian Arts &
Culture

Employee volunteering

To foster a culture of inclusive
growth, we seek to engage our
people in various CSR initiatives.
The involvement of our workforce
in our CSR journey not only

allows us fo inculcate a feeling

of social inclusivity, but it also
aims to nurture qualities that are
essential for developing a thriving
and responsible organisafion.

We appoint employees as CSR
Champions and CSR activity
leaders to act as ambassadors for
the Company.

e |t helps to strengthen
relationships with key
stakeholders and promote the
organisation's values and goals
as a socially responsible entity.

* Volunteers are engaged in
capacity building and social
awareness campaigns, act
as menfors in educational
institutions and participate in
free plantation drives.

e Ithasresultedin the
development of exemplary
CSR projects, showcasing the
commitment of employees in
creating a positive impact on
the community.

1,700+

Employees volunteered
for CSR projects
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Guided by a visionary leadership

Believing to lead by example and fostering a culture of integrity, fairness
and fransparency throughout the organisation, our senior leaders provide
invaluable guidance when it comes fo corporate social responsibility
(CSR) and ethics. They embody a strong commitment to ethical practices
and the welfare of our local communities.

Crafting a CSR strategy

Our leaders create a
comprehensive CSR
strategy that aligns with our
mission and objectives.

Communicating CSR efforts

Our leaders inform alll
shareholders about our CSR
initiatives. This includes our
“ customers, dedlers, investors
and personnel. This open
communication helps foster
frust and a strong reputation
within our business network.

Upholding Accountability

a Our senior leadership
Leading by example assumes accountability by
conducting regular reviews
of our CSR initiatives, fracking
expenditures and confirming
that our social efforts are
aligned with broader
organisational goals.

Demonstrating their
commitment to social
responsibility, our leaders
participate in community
projects and serve as an
inspiration for others within
our organisation.
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Social and Relationship Capital (continued...)

M

Education

Bajaj Electricals has undertaken

a series of initiatives aimed at
enhancing the infrastructure in
schools and ensuring the holistic
well-being of children through the
promotion of sports.

e Supporting skilled athletes and
promoting the advancement
of sports education through
stfrengthening of sports
infrastructure in schools.

e Upgrading existing facilities
in schools through the
construction of classrooms,
libraries, laboratories and
recreational areas. By
creatfing a conducive
learning environment, we
ensure student engagement,
well-being, and academic
excellence.
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Healthcare

We undertake a wide array

of comprehensive healthcare
programmes that are dedicated
to providing access to quality
healthcare.

e Offering oral cancer screening
facilities for Mumbai railway
police personnel as well as
other patients.

e Training and capacity building
programmes for healthcare
professionals.

e Assisting programmes for
encouraging tobacco
cessation.

e« Conducting anti-tobacco
advocacy and awareness
programmes in collaboration
with schools, colleges and
communities.

g B

Art and culture

To foster the development of
art and culture, we continue to
undertake several initiatives.

¢ AnInnovation Hub has been
set up to specifically focus
on supporting start-ups and
fostering the growth of new-
age enfrepreneurs in the field
of art and culture.

¢ Extending support to emerging
artists fo pursue a careers in arts.

For the Environment

The Challenge

Environmental concerns

such as air pollution, water pollution,
soil erosion and the urban heat
island effect have become more
pronounced in urban locations.

The scarcity of green spaces in
these regions further worsens

these problems. To address these
challenges and improve the urban
ecology, it has become imperative
to find comprehensive solutions that
can enhance the quality of life for
city dwellers.

Our approach

In response to these concerns, we
launched environmental initiatives
across India at focus on free
plantations and urban forestation in
collaboration with various partners.

n Tree plantation

Encouraging our people to
engage in CSR initiatives, we
planted frees in key locations such
as parks, gardens, educational
institutions and, government
premises. It aimed fo improve
forest cover in urban areas, create
better air quality, and support the
natural biodiversity of the region.

E Urban forestation

Through this programme, we
established large-scale green
spaces in urban locations,
including from native trees and
flowering plants. Our main focus
was increasing the forest coverin
urban areas, improve air and water
quality, promote biodiversity and
offer recreational opportunities.

Incubation Hub

ABLIH is an incubation centre
created as an Innovation Hub across
15,500 sq. ft. area, with of world-class
facilities and new- age infrastructure.
The hub offers 360-degree
interventions including mentoring,
seed funding and meets incubation
needs of start-ups. The thrust areas
are Women Entrepreneurship (WE)
and Creative Entrepreneurship, two
areas that often remain outside the
purview of incubators.

The results

By executing this dual strategy,
we have planted more than
86,000 frees across various urban
sites. These efforts have led to
substantial ecological, social and
economic benefits, including:

e Improved air quality: Our
plantations absorb carbon
dioxide and other pollutants,
thereby enhancing air quality.
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* Increased biodiversity: The
diverse species of trees planted
provide habitats for wildlife,
thus enriching local biodiversity.

¢ Soil conservation: By reducing
soil erosion and improving
soil quality, our efforts support
local agriculture and natural
ecosystems.

¢ Water conservation: The trees
reduce water runoff and
increase infilfration, mitigating
the effects of drought and
protecting water quality.

* Reduction in urban heat island
effect: The frees offer shade,
reducing temperatures in
urban areas and lowering the
demand for air conditioning.

¢ Aesthetic value: The added
greenery has beautified urban
spaces, upliffing the quality of
life for residents and visitors.

¢ Livelihood generation: The
initiative has created additional
income sources, confributing to
the local economy.

86,000+

Trees planted

Long term outlook

After 5-10 years of growth, these
plantations could potentially
sequester around 6,000 to 9,000

metric tonnes of carbon dioxide
each year, marking a significant
stride towards environmental
sustainability.
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Social and Relationship Capital (continued...)

Value creation for suppliers

At Bajaj Electricals, we are
cognisant of the intfegral

role that our suppliers play

in our operations. This
acknowledgement forms the
bedrock of our holistic approach
to supplier engagement, ensuring
that our interactions create
shared value.

90+

Suppliers and Vendors

Ensuring ethical conduct

Our commitment to fransparency and ethical conduct forms the cornerstone of our relationship with our
suppliers. This guides inferactions with our suppliers and governs our expectations from them.

Communication and
escalation channels

Supplier onboarding Contractual agreements

During the onboarding process, We strive to ensure that our

Promoting local
sourcing

‘Hello Local’

Our Supply Chain
Management team promotes
local procurement through
the ‘Hello Local’ initiative.
Currently, our reliance on

imports stands at over 170 SKUs.

However, our focused efforts
towards localisation have
resulted in domestic sourcing
of 35 SKUs. Moreover, we are
in the process of localising
an additional 20+ SKUs. This
drive towards localisation
encompasses a wide range
of products under both Bajqj

Electricals and Morphy Richards

brands, demonstrating our
commitment fo supporting
local businesses and reducing
import dependency.

Supplier engagement
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Our interaction with suppliers is marked by frequent and varied

engagement methods.

Individual meetings
and site visits

We maintain close
relationships with
our suppliers,
conducting on-site
visits and individual
meetings fo discuss
new products

and business
requirements.

Regular
communication

Through emaiils,
meetings and
conferences, we
ensure our lines of
communication

are always open,
with engagement
happening on a
quarterly, biannual
and annual basis, or
as the business needs
dictate.

Operational
discussions

We conduct

daily operational
discussions with
suppliers to ensure
seamless operation
flow and address
concerns in a timely
manner.

all suppliers are informed of our
policies and Code of Conduct.
This step ensures that our suppliers
understand our operational
procedures, ethical guidelines
and expectations right from the
beginning.
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We encourage open
communication and strive to
resolve conflicts easily. As a
result, we share our modes of
communication and escalation
contacts with all our suppliers.
This allows them to confidentially
share concerns directly with the
management. We consider this
procedure vital for fostering trust
and facilitating constfructive

dialogue with our supply partners.

contractual agreements with
suppliers contain all relevant
clauses pertaining to our business
relationship. These confracts
establish our expectations and

the supplier's obligations, sefting a
clear framework for our partnership
and ensures protection of both
parties.
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Social and Relationship Capital (continued...)

Training and capacity
building initiatives

Our value-creation efforts focus on
the training and development of
our suppliers. We conduct regular
workshops and awareness sessions
to cover key topics such as ESG
norms, RoHS compliance, and BIS
regulations. These sessions provide
suppliers with guidelines and
processes for product compliance
and delivery requirements, helping
them meet our expectations.

Supplier satisfaction surveys

We conduct regular supplier
satisfaction surveys to gauge

the satisfaction of our suppliers,
address their concerns, and
improve our supplier relationship
management. These surveys cover
arange of issues, such as quality,
cost, delivery, ESG compliance
and payments.
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Embedding sustainability in supplier engagement

We ensure that our business partners align with our sustainability
principles. To do so, we adopt several measures encourage our
suppliers to adopt sustainability practices.

Supplier tracking

We inform our suppliers about
sustainability measures and
reporting under ESG criteria. It is
important to us that our suppliers
understand the significance

of these measures and how
they contribute to our shared
commitment to sustainable
business practices.

Currently, we use manual
processes to measure and monitor
the sustainability activities of our
suppliers. While these methods

are labour-intensive, they provide
us with valuable insights into our
suppliers' environmental footprint
and allow us to frack their
adherence to our sustainability
expectations.

Supplier factory compliance checks

Our team conducts compliance
checks at supplier factories

to ensure compliance with
sustainability standards and
industry regulations. These
checks ensure that our suppliers'
operations align with our
environmental standards and
industry regulations.

Environmental screening
for new suppliers

Screening new suppliers

through environmental criteria

is a fundamental aspect of our
supplier onboarding process. The
production facilities of potential
suppliers are subject to audit by
our Quality Assurance team, which
evaluates them based on multiple
parameters. The final score from
this evaluation is used to screen
the suppliers.

Mulya

A Platform for
Supplier Innovation

Under our Mulya initiative, we
have launched a portal with an
emphasis on ‘VAVE' activities
for encouraging our suppliers to
propose cost-saving and value-
adding ideas. This portal acts as
a platform for our suppliers to
showcase their creativity and
innovation, leading to mutual
benefits. As part of this initiative,
we acknowledge the best cost-
saving ideas.

Value creation for Customers

At the core of our services lies

our unwavering commitment

to providing our customers with
best-in-class experience. Our
comprehensive customer care
framework is designed to prioritise
customer safisfaction, streamline
service operations and resolve
issues promptly.

Real-time customer satisfaction
surveys

After each service interaction,

we facilitate an online, real-time
affersales customer satisfaction
survey. The customer is asked

to express their satfisfaction by
choosing emojis and validating the
response with an OTP received at
the beginning of the service call.

More
than 99%

Delighted and
satisfied customers

Outsourced customer support

We have outsourced our entire
customer support to a team
comprising thousands of field
service engineers. The team not
only helps in expanding our service
network, but also enhances the
capabilities of service engineers,
ensuring fast and effective
resolution of service calls.

3,600

Field service engineers

Digital customer interactions

We have embraced digitalisation
to enhance customer interactions.
Several online tools, such as
chatbots, webforms, and
WhatsApp call registration, have
been integrated into our customer
support system, and we plan to
infroduce a voice bot for call

registration and call status updates.

Customer care centres

Our customer care centres

serve as a major fouchpoints for
managing and resolving consumer
complaints. There is an exclusive
team of agents for Online Calll
Resolution (OCR). They resolve
customer issues over the phone
whenever possible, reducing the
need for in-person visits.

621

Consumer care centres

Way forward

We plan to intensify
our engagement on
social media platforms
to improve customer
relationships and boost
brand visibility.

In the years ahead, we
will continue nurturing
strong, mutually
beneficial relationships
with our business partners
and stakeholders.

We are also committed
fo scaling up our
community outreach
initiatives, thereby
positively impacting local
communities to foster
societal goodwill.
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Natural Capital (continued...)

Through the widespread adoption of solar panels, we harness the power
of renewable energy while reducing our carbon footprint. We have also
set targets to reduce Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions, ensuring that our
operations align with global climate goals. Targeted interventions are

in place to monitor and control waste generation from our facilities,

as we actively embrace our responsibility as an extended producer.
Additionally, efficient water management practices are at the forefront of
our agenda, ensuring the sustainable use of this vital resource. Through our
different sustainability initiatives, we are contributing to a greener future.

Energy management

We are actively encouraging

the adoption of solar panels as

a sustainable and eco-friendly
energy solution, aiming fo transition
from non-renewable sources

to renewable energy. Through

this approach we support the
preservation of our environment
and aim to reduce the carbon
footprint associated with fraditional
energy generation methods.

Aligned with India’s net zero
ambition, we have increased our
reliance on renewable sources of
energy. We have installed solar
facilities at our Ranjangaon and
Chakan facilities during FY 2023.
The capacity of the Chakan plant
has been increased to 605 KWP.
During the current fiscal year, a 437
KWP rooftop solar system was also
installed at Nirlep and a 791 KWP
rooffop solar system was installed at
the Ranjangaon unit.

We have also installed variable
frequency drive (VFD) to control
the speed of electric motors by
varying its input voltage. For smooth
operation of motors, we have
implemented VFDs in motor-driven
systems to enable, energy savings
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of up to 50% or more, depending
on the specific application and
operating conditions. The ability

to precisely control motor speed,
optimise energy usage at partial
loads, and eliminate unnecessary
mechanical control devices are
key factors that contribute to
energy efficiency when using VFDs.

Solar

2,138 «we

Installed renewable capacity

2,800 «w

Installed renewable capacity

GHG emissions

To limit our environmental footprint,
we are consistently monitoring our
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions,
with an aim to automate the entire
process. We also strive to measure
emission levels on a monthly

basis and based on the analysis,
strategies and corrective action
will be taken. We have set a target
to reduce specific Scope 1 and
Scope 2 emission by at least 2%, by
FY 2025.

2,138 «we

Installed solar energy capacity

Waste generation

As a manufacturer of consumer
electrical goods, we acknowledge
that our products can become an
environmental liability if they are
not disposed properly at the end
of their life cycle. Our products

are wrapped in plastic packaging
and some of our products contain
batteries that have a significant
impact on the environment. As
aresult, we have undertaken
targeted interventions to monitor
and control waste generation from
our facilities. Along with efforts

fo minimise waste, we have also
adopted an innovative approach
to implement novel ideas that can
contribute fowards our goal of
efficient waste management.

We have successfully redirected
over 99% of our waste away
from landfills through innovative
practices and rigorous recycling
efforts, effectively minimising
environmental harm and
mMaximising resource recovery.

5,568.15 mr

(4 manufacturing plants)
Total waste generated
in FY 2023

5,044.39 m

Recycled waste
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5,568.15 mr

Total waste treated

3.56 m

(4 manufacturing plants)
Waste freated through
landfill

Bajaj Electricals collaborated with external
agencies to meet the CPCB's Extended

Producer Responsibility targets for e-waste,
battery waste and plastic waste in FY 2023.

84" Annual Report 2022-23| 95



Natural Capital (continued...)

Proper waste disposal

To ensure proper disposal of waste,

our R&D and packaging team

is actively working on creating
more sustainable products and
solutions that generate less waste.
We have also partnered with
agencies to meet the Extended
Producer Responsibility (EPR)
targets for recycling. Additionally,
we are developing a process for
allowing end customers to easily
deposit electrical products at
designated collection centres

at the end of their lifecycle. We
plan to launch an awareness
campaign for end-users and
provide information on proper
waste disposal methods through
product brochures. Internally, we
follow a proper waste disposal
procedure to dispose hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes, as per
set guidelines.

We have bagged
Golden Peacock
Innovative Product
award for developing
sustainable product
packaging.
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Water management

We focus on efficient water
management through a number
of dedicated efforts to minimise
water usage and conserve water.
By recycling wastewater, we have
ensured Zero Liquid Discharge
from our Chakan unit. We have
also integrated drip irrigation for
gardening and taken initiatives
to repair and change leaking
pipelines at our facilities. Also, we
regularly monitor and analyse
water consumption to regulate
water usage.

We are committed to conserve
our water resources by building
rainwater harvesting systems. These
structures are intended to collect
and store rainwater, which will then
be used for various purposes within
our operations.
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On Thursday, the 10th August, 2023, af 03.00 PM (IST through Video Conferencing /

Other Audio Visual Means
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Eighty-fourth (84th)
Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the members of
Bajaj Electricals Limited (the “Company”) will be held
on Thursday, August 10, 2023, at 03.00 P.M. (IST) through
Video Conferencing (“VC")/Other Audio-Visual Means
("OAVM") to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider, and adopt the:

A. audited financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,
together with the reports of Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon; and

B. audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023, together with the report of
Auditors thereon.

To declare a dividend of ¥ 4.00 per equity share of
face value of ¥ 2 each for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Madhur Bajaj
(DIN 00014593), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Rajiv Bajagj
(DIN 00018262), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.

To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the
financial year ending March 31, 2024, and, in this
regard, to consider and if thought fit, fo pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force), the remuneration of ¥ 1,89,750/- (Rupees
One Lakh Eighty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred
and Fifty only) plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, as
approved by the Board upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, to be paid to Messrs
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R. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm
registration no. 000010) as Cost Auditors of the
Company for conducting the cost audit for
financial year 2023-24, be and is hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved.”

To approve the Borrowing by way of Issue of
Securities and, in this regard, fo consider and if
thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 42 and
71 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) read
with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable
provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, as may be applicable, and other
applicable guidelines and regulations issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India or any
other law for the time being in force (including
any statutory amendment(s), modification(s),
clarification(s), substitution(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force) and in terms
of the Articles of Association of the Company,
approval of the Members of the Company be
accorded to authorise the Board of Directors of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”,
which term shall be deemed to include, unless the
context otherwise require, any committee of the
Board or any director(s) or officer(s) authorised by
the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the
Board under this resolution) to borrow from time to
time, by way of securitiesincluding but notlimited to
secured/ unsecured redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) and/or Commercial Papers
(CPs) to be issued under private placement basis,
in domestic and/or international market, in one or
more series/franches aggregating upto an amount
not exceeding % 500 crore (Rupees Five Hundred
Crore only), issuable/redeemable at discount/
par/premium, under one or more shelf disclosure
documents, during the period of one year from
the date of this Annual General Meeting, on such
terms and conditions as the Board may, from time
fo time, determine and consider proper and most
beneficialto the Companyincluding astowhenthe
said NCDs and/or CPs be issued, the consideration
for the issue, utilisation of the issue proceeds and
all matters connected with or incidental thereto;
provided that the said borrowings shall be within

the overall borrowing limit of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters
and things, and to take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper, or expedient fo give effect
fo this resolution and fo settle any questfions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.”

Appointment of Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar
(DIN: 01875316) as an Independent Director and,
in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar
(DIN: 01875316), who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company with effect
from May 23, 2023, by the Board of Directors, based
on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, and who holds office
as such up to this Annual General Meeting of the
Company under Section 161(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and in respect of whom the
Company has received a nofice in writing under
Section 160(1) of the Act from a member proposing
his candidature for the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act read with Schedule
IV to the Act, and the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and
other applicable regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force), the appointment of Mr.
Sudarshan Sampathkumar (DIN: 01875316), who has
submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria
of independence as provided in Section 149(4)

NOTES

1.

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA"), videits General
Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021,
21/2021, 02/2022, 03/2022, 10/2022, and 11/2022
dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020,
January 13, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022,
May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022 and December 28,
2022 respectively (collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”), and the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI”), vide its Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/
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of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations and who is eligible for appointfment,
as a Non-Executive, Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term
of five years commencing from May 23, 2023, up to
May 22, 2028, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 149, 197 and other applicable provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, Mr.
Sudarshan Sampathkumar shall be entitled to
receive the remuneration/ fees/ commission
as permitted to be received in a capacity Non-
Executive, Independent Director under the Act
and SEBI Listing Regulations, as recommended by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board of Directors, from time
fo time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
and/or the Company Secretary, be and are
hereby authorized to settle any question, difficulty,
or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this
resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things
as may be necessary, expedient, and desirable for
the purpose of giving effect to this resolution”.

By Order of the Board of Directors
of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Ajay Nagle

Company Secretary & Head of Department
ICSI Membership No. A?855

Mumbai, May 23, 2023

Registered Office:

45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400001, India.
CIN: L31500MH1938PLC009887

Website: www.bajajelectricals.com

E-mail: legal@bajajelectricals.com
Tel.: +91 22 6110 7800 / 6149 7000

CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79,  SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/
CIR/P/2021/11, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62
and  SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4  dated
May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022, and
January 5, 2023 respectively (collectively referred
to as “SEBI Circulars”) permitted the holding of the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC")/Other Audio-Visual Means
("OAVM”), without the physical presence of the
Members. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
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and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), MCA
Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being held through VC/OAVM which
does not require physical presence of members at
a common venue. The proceedings of the AGM
will be deemed to be conducted at the Registered
Office of the Company which shall be the deemed
Venue of the AGM.

The statement pursuant o Section 102 of the Act,
setting out the material facts in respect of special
businesses under Iltfem Nos.5 to 7 is annexed hereto.
Further, the relevant details concerning Itfem Nos.
3, 4 and 7 according to Regulation 36 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the
Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment
at this AGM provided/ annexed hereunder.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her
behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant
fo the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical
aftendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies
by the Members will not be available for the AGM
and hence the Proxy Form and Aftendance Slip
are not annexed to this Nofice.

Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as
amended, mandates that transfer, fransmission
and fransposition of securities of listed companies
heldin physical formshallbe effected onlyindemat
mode. Further, SEBI, vide its circular dated January
25, 2022, has clarified that listed companies, with
immediate effect, shall issue the securities only
in demat mode while processing investor service
requests pertaining to issuance of duplicate shares,
exchange of shares, endorsement, sub-division/
consolidation of share certificates, etc. In view of
this, Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to submit duly filled Form ISR-4 for the
abovementioned service requests. In view of this
and fo eliminate all risks associated with physical
shares and for ease of portfolio management,
Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to consider converting their holdings
fo dematerialised form. Members can contact
the Company or Company’s Registrars and
Transfer Agents, Link Infime India Private Limited
(“Linkintime™) for assistance in this regard.
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5.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who
have not yet registered their email addresses are
requested toregister the same with their Depository
Participant (DP) in case the shares are held by
them in electronic form and with Linkintime in case
the shares are held by them in physical form.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if
any, pertaining to theirname, postal address, email
address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent
Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations,
power of attorney, bank details such as, name
of the bank and branch details, bank account
number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DP
in case the shares are held by them in electronic
form and fo Linkintime in Form ISR-1 in case the
shares are held by them in physical form.

Members holding shares in physical form who
have not registered their email addresses with
the Company can get their email addresses
registered by clicking on the link:_https://linkintime.
co.in/emailreg/emdil register.html on the website
www.linkintime.co.in at the Investor Services tab
by choosing the e-mail registration heading and
update their details such as Name, Folio number,
Certificate number, PAN, mobile number and email
id by uploading scanned copy of share certificate
(front and back) in pdf or jpeg format (upto 1MB).

Members holding shares in demat form are
requested to update their email address with their
respective DPs.

SEBI vide its earlier circulars have made the PAN as
the sole identification number for all participants
fransacting in the securities market, irrespective
of the amount of the transaction. Members are
requested to submit their PAN details to their
respective DP in case of holdings in dematerialised
form or to Linkintime in case of holdings in physical
form, mentioning the correct folio number.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act,
the facility for making nomination is available
for the Members in respect of the shares held by
them. Members who have not yet registered their
nomination are requested to register the same
by submitting Form No. SH-13. The said form can
be downloaded from the Company’s website.
Members are requested to submit the said details
to their DP in case the shares are held by them
in electronic form and fo Linkintime in case the
shares are held in physical form. If a Member
desires to opt-out or cancel the earlier nomination
and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit

12.

the same in Form ISR3 or SH-14 as the case may be.

ATTENTION  SHAREHOLDER: SEBI, vide the
Circular  Nos.  SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/
CIR/2021/655 dated November 03, 2021, SEBI/
HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687
dated December 14, 2021, and SEBI/HO/MIRSD/
MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16,
2023, has mandated furnishing of PAN, Address
with pincode, email address, mobile number,
bank account details, specimen signature and
nomination by holders of physical securities. Folios
wherein any one of the cited documents/ details
are not available on or after September 30, 2023,
shall be frozen by the Registrar and Transfer Agent
of the Company

. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name

appears as the first holder in the order of names as
per the Register of Members of the Company will
be entitled to vote at the AGM.

. Members, infending to require information about

the Financial Statements or any other matter to be
placed at the Meeting, are requested to inform
the Company at least a week in advance of their
infention fo do so, so that the papers relating
thereto may be made available, if the Chairman
permits such information to be furnished.

Dividend related information:

A. Final dividend for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023, as recommended by the
Board of Directors, if approved by the members
at the AGM, will be paid on or after Monday,
August 14, 2023, to those members whose
names appear on the Register of Members as
on Friday, July 28, 2023.

B. Members holding shares in elecfronic form
are hereby informed that bank partficulars
registered with their respective Depository
Participants (DP), with whom they maintain
their demat accounts, will be used by the
Company for payment of dividend.

C. Members holding shares in physical/electronic
form are required to submit their bank account
details, if not already registered, as mandated
by SEBI.

D. Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized
mode are requested to register complete
bank account details with their DPs and
shareholders holding shares in physical mode
shall send a duly signed request letter to
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Linkintime mentioning the name, folio no.,
bank details, self-attested PAN card and
original cancelled cheque leaf. In case of
absence of name of the first shareholder on
the original cancelled cheque or initials on
the cheque, bank attested copy of first page
of the Bank Passbook/Statement of Account
along with the original cancelled cheque shall
be provided.

In case the Company is unable to pay the
dividend to any shareholder by the electronic
mode, due to non-availability of the details of
the bank account, the Company shall dispatch
the dividend warrants to such shareholder by
post.

Members may note that as per the Income
Tax Act, 1961, as amended by the Finance
Act, 2020, dividends paid or distributed by the
Company after April 1, 2020, shall be taxable
in the hands of the shareholders and the
Company shall be required to deduct tax at
source (TDS) at the prescribed rates from the
dividend fo be paid to shareholders, subject
to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing
AGM. The TDS rate would vary depending on
the residential status of the shareholder and
the documents submitted by him/her/it in
support and accepted by the Company.

i. All Shareholders are requested to ensure
that the below information & details
are completed and/or updated, as
applicable, in their respective demat
account(s) maintained with the DP(s); orin
case of shares held in physical form, with
Linklntime, on or before the Record Date
i.e., Friday, July 28, 2023.

Please note that the following information
& details, if already registered with
the Linkintime and Depositories, as the
case may be, will be relied upon by the
Company, for the purpose of complying
with the applicable TDS provisions:

[. Valid PAN*.

Il.  Residential status as per the Income
Tax Act, 1961 i.e., Resident or Non-
Resident for FY 2023-24.

lll. Category of the Shareholder viz. Mutual
Fund, Insurance Company, Alternate
Investment Fund (AlIF) Category land I,
AIF Category lll, Government (Central/
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State Government), Foreign Portfolio
Investor  (FPI)/Foreign  Insfitutional
Investor (Fll): Foreign Company, FPI/
FIl.: Others (being Individual, Firm,
Trust, Arfificial Juridical Person, etfc.),
Individual, Hindu Undivided Family
(HUF), Firm, Limited Liability Partnership
(LLP), Associatfion of Persons (AOP),
Body of Individuals (BOI) or Artificial
Juridical  Person,  Trust, Domestic
Company, Foreign Company,
Overseas Corporate Bodies, etc.

IV. Email Address.

V. Residential Address.

*If the PAN is not as per the database of the
Income-tax Portal, it would be considered as
an invalid PAN. Further as per the Notification
of the Central Board of Direct Taxes, individual
shareholders are requested to link their Aadhaar
number with PAN.

For Resident Shareholders, TDS is required
to be deducted at the rate of 10% under
Section 194 of the Income Tax Act, 1961
on the amount of dividend declared and
paid by the Company in the financial year
2023-24 provided valid PAN is registered
by the Shareholder. If the valid PAN is
not registered, the TDS is required to be
deducted at the rate of 20% under Section
206AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

However, in case the dividend is not
exceeding % 5,000 in a fiscal year fo
resident individual shareholder then no fax
will be deducted from the dividend. If any
resident individual shareholder is in receipt
of Dividend exceeding % 5,000 in a fiscal
year, entire dividend will be subject to TDS
@ 10%.

Even in the cases where the shareholder
provides valid Form 15G (for individuals,
with no tax liability on total income and
income not exceeding maximum amount
which is not chargeable to tax) or Form
15H (for individual above the age of 60
years with no tax liability on total income),
no TDS shall be deducted.

For Non-resident shareholders [Including
Foreign Instfitutional Investors (Flls)/Foreign
Portfolio Investors (FPIs)], the TDS is required
to be deducted at the rate of 20% (plus
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applicable surcharge and cess) under
Section 195 or 196D of the Income Tax Act,
1961, as the case may be. Further, as per
Section 90 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the
non-resident shareholder has the option
fo be governed by the provisions of the
Double Tax Avoidance Treaty between
India and the country of tax residence of
the shareholder, if they are more beneficial
fo them.

For this purpose, i.e., fo avail Tax Treaty
benefits, the non-resident shareholders will
have to provide the following:

I.  Self-attested copy of the PAN allotted
by the Indian Income Tax authorities;

Il. Self-attested copy of valid Tax
Residency Certificate obtained from
the tax authorities of the country of
which the shareholder is a resident;

lIl. Self-declaration in Form 10F; and

IV. Self-declaration in the below stated
format certifying:

e Shareholder is and will continue
fo remain a fax resident of the
country of its residence during the
financial year 2023-24;

e Shareholder is eligible to claim
the beneficial Double Taxation
Avoidance Agreement (DTAA)
rate for the purposes of fax
withholding on dividend declared
by the Company;

e Shareholder has no reason fo
believe that its claim for the
benefits of the DTAA is impaired in
any manner;

e Shareholder is the ullimate
beneficial owner of its shareholding
in the Company and dividend
receivable from the Company;
and

e Shareholder does nof have a
taxable presence or a permanent
establishment in India during the
financial year 2023-24.

iv. The draft of the aforementioned

documents may also be accessed from

Vi.

vii.

the Company’s website atf: https://www.
bajajelectricals.com/miscellaneous/

Submission of tax related documents:
Resident Shareholders

The aforesaid documents such as Form
15G/15H, under Sections 196, 197A,
etc. shall be uploaded only on the link
https://web.linkintime.co.in/formsreg/
submission-of-form-15g-15h.html  on  or
before Friday, July 28, 2023 to enable the
Company to determine the appropriate
TDS/withholding tax rate applicable. Any
communication on the tax determination/
deduction received post Friday, July 28,
2023, shall not be considered.

Shareholders can also send the scanned
copies of the documents mentioned
above at the email id mentioned below:

Email ID bdajajelectricalsdivtax@linkintime.
co.in

Non-Resident Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to send
the scanned copies of the documents
mentioned above at the email id
mentioned below:

Email ID bajajelectricalsdiviax@linkintime.
co.in

These documents should reach the
Company on or before Friday, July 28,
2023, in order to enable the Company to
determine and deduct appropriate TDS/
withholding tax rate. No communication
on the tax deftermination/deduction shall
be considered post Friday, July 28, 2023.

It may be further noted that in case the tax
on dividend is deducted at a higherrate in
absence of receipt of the aforementioned
details/documents, there would still be
an option available with the shareholder
fo file the return of income and claim an
appropriate refund, if eligible. No claim
shall lie against the Company for such
taxes deducted.

We shall arrange to email the soft copy of
TDS certificate at your registered email ID in
due course, post payment of the dividend.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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Members arerequestedtonote that, dividendsifnot
encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from
the date of fransfer to Unpaid Dividend Account
of the Company, are liable to be fransferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF").
The shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends
are also liable to be fransferred to the demat
account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this,
Members are requested to claim their dividends
from the Company, within the stipulated fimeline.
The Members, whose unclaimed dividends/
shares have been fransferred to IEPF, may claim
the same by making an online application to the
IEPF Authority in web Form No. IEPF-5 available on

www.iepf.gov.in.

It is in the Members' interest to claim any
unencashed dividends and for future, opt for
Electronic Clearing Service, so that dividends
paid by the Company are credited to the
investor’'s account on fime. Members who have
not yet encashed their dividend warrant(s) from
the financial year ended March 31, 2017, and
onwards are requested to forward their claims to
Linkintime at Unit: Bajaj Electricals Limited, C 101,
247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai —
400 083, Maharashtra. It may be noted that once
the unclaimed dividend is transferred to IEPF as
above, no claim shall rest with the Company in
respect of such amount. It may also be noted that
the unclaimed dividend amounts which were lying
with the Company upto the year ended on March
31,2016, have already been transferred to IEPF. The
details of the unclaimed dividends are available
on the Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.
com and Ministry of Corporate Affairs website:
WWW.MCA.gov.in.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars
and SEBI Circulars, Notfice of the AGM along
with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only
through electronic mode to those Members whose
email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories. Members may note that the Nofice
and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available
on the Company’s website www.bajajelectricals.
com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.
com respectively, and on the website of Linkintime
at hittps://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.
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17. The Company has designated an e-mail id legal@
bajajelectricals.com to enable investors fo register
their complaints/queries, if any.

18. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the
Route Map is not given in this Nofice.

19. Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are
as follows:

A. Voting Through Electronic Means

In compliance with the provisions of Section
108 of the Act and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and  Administration) Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time, and the
provisions of Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Members are provided with
the facility to cast their vote electronically,
through the remote e-voting services provided
by Linkintime on all Resolutions set forth in this
Notfice.

The remote e-voting period commences on
August 6, 2023 (9:00 A.M. IST) and ends on
August 9, 2023 (5:00 P.M. IST). During this period
Members of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialised
form, as on the cut-off date of August 3, 2023,
may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The
remotfe e-vofing module shall be disabled
by Linkintime for voting thereafter. Once the
vote on resolution is cast by the Member, the
Member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December
9, 2020, on e-Voting facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode can vote
through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and DPs only. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and
email ID in their demat accounts to access
e-Voting facility. Remote e-Voting Instructions
for shareholders:

a. For Individual  Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with NSDL: -

e |If you are dalready registered for
NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on
a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services
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is launched, click on the "“Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is
available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID and Password.

e After successful authenticatfion, you
will be able to see e-Voting services.
Click on "Access to e-Votfing” under
e-Voting services and you will be
able to see e-Voting page. Click on
Company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

e If the user is not registered for IDeAS
e-Services, option fo register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.
com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS
Portal” or click at hitps://eservices.nsdl.
com/SecureWeb/IldeasDirectReq.jsp

e Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL.
Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www. evoting.
nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member' section. A new screen will
open. You will have to entfer your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat
account number held with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page.
Click on Company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meefing & voting during the
meeting.

b. For Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with CDSL: -

* Existing user who have opted for
Easi / Easiest, they can login through

c. For

their user id and password. Option
will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to
login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login  or
www.cdslindia.com and click on New
System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi / Easiest
the user will also be able to see the
e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have
links of e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL, KARVY, LINK INTIME, CDSL. Click
on e-Voting service provider name to
cast your vote.

If the user is not registered for Easi/
Easiest, option fo register is available
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
Registration/EasiRegistration.

Alternatively, the user can directly
access e-Voting page by providing
demat Account Number and PAN No.
from a link in www.cdslindia.com home
page. The system will authenticate
the user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the
demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be provided
links for the respective ESP where the
e-Voting is in progress.

Individual  Shareholders  holding

securities in demat mode and login
through their DPs:-

You can also login using the login
credentials of your demat account
through your DP registered with NSDL/
CDSL for e-Voting facility.

Once logged in, you will be able
to see e-Voting option. Once you
click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository
site affer successful authentication,
wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the
meefting.

For
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Individual ~ Shareholders  holding

securities in Physical mode and e-voting
service Provider is LINKINTIME:-

1.

Open the internet browser and launch
the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.
co.in. Click on “Sign Up" under ‘SHARE
HOLDER' tab and register with your
following details: -

A. User ID: Shareholders/ members
holding shares in physical form shall
provide Event No + Folio Number
registered with the Company.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit PAN.
Members who have not updated
their PAN with the DP/Company
shall use the sequence number as
provided.

C. DOB/DQI: Enter the Date of Birth
(DOB) / Date of Incorporation
(DOI) (As recorded with your DP
/ Company - in DD/MM/YYYY
format).

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your
Bank Account Number (last four
digits), as recorded with your DP/
Company.

e Shareholders/ members holding
shares in physical form but have
not recorded ‘C' and ‘D’, shall
provide their Folio number in ‘D’
above.

e Set the password of your choice
(the password should contain
minimum 8 characters, at least
one special character (@!#$&*),
at least one numeral, at least one
alphabet and at least one capital
letter).

e Click "confirm” (your password is
now generated).

Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER'
tab.

Enter your User ID, Password and
Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code
and click on ‘Submit’.

After successful login, you will be able
fo see the nofification for e-voting.
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e.

Select ‘View' icon.
5. E-voting page will appear.

6. Refer the Resolution description and
cast your vote by selecting your
desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If
you wish to view the entire Resolutfion
details, click on the ‘View Resolution’
file link).

7. After selecting the desired option i.e.,
Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If
you wish to confirm your vote, click on
‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click
on ‘No’' and accordingly modify your
vote.

For Institutional shareholders: -

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, NRI, and custodians are
required to log on the e-voting system of
Linkintime ot https://instavote.linkintime.
co.inandregister themselves as ‘Custodian
/ Mutual Fund / Corporate Body'. They
are also required to upload a scanned
certified frue copy of the board resolution
/authority letter/power of attorney, etc.
together with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorised representative(s) in
PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund
/ Corporate Body' login for the Scrutinizer
to verify the same.

If Individual Shareholders (holding securities
in physical mode, and e-Voting service
provider is LINKINTIME), have forgotten the
password:-

e C(Click on ‘Login' wunder ‘SHARE
HOLDER' tab and further Click ‘forgot
password?’

e Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter
Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code
and Click on ‘Submit’.

e In case shareholders/member s
having valid email address, password
will be sent to his / her registered e-mail
address.

e Shareholders/member can set the
password of his/ her choice by
providing the information about the
particulars of the Security Question
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g.

and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank
Account Number (last four digits) etc.
as mentioned above.

e The password should contain minimum
8 characters, at least one special
character (@!#%$&*), at least one
numeral, at least one alphabet and at
least one capital letter.

If Individual Shareholders (holding securities
in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL) have
forgotten the password:-

e Shareholders/Members who are
unable to retrieve User ID/Password
are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available
at abovementioned depository/DP
website.

e It is sfrongly recommended nof fo
share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

e For shareholders/ members holding
shares in physical form, the details
can be used only for vofing on the
resolutions contained in this Nofice.

* During the voting period, shareholders/
members can login any number of time
fill they have voted on the resolution(s)
for a particular “Event”.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat mode:-

In case shareholders/ members holding
securities in demat mode have any
technical issues related to login through
Depository i.e., NSDL/ CDSL, they may
contact the respective helpdesk given
below:

e Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with NSDL:
Members facing any technical issue
in login can contact NSDL helpdesk
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.
co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990 and 1800 22 44 30.

e Individual Shareholders holding
securifies in demat mode with CDSL:
Members facing any fechnical issue
in login can confact CDSL helpdesk

by sending a request at helpdesk.

evoting@cdslindia.com or contact af
022- 23058738 or 22-23058542-43.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders
holding securities in  physical mode/
Institutional  shareholders & e-Voting
service Provider is LINKINTIME:-

In case shareholders/ members holding
securifies in physical mode/ Institutional
shareholders have any queries regarding
e-Voting, they may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (‘FAQs') and InstaVote
e-Voting manual available ot  hitps://
instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section
or send an email to enotices@linkintime.
co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 -4918 6000.

Process for those shareholders whose
email addresses are not registered with the
Company/Depositories for obtaining login
credentials for e-Voting for the resolutions
proposed in this notice:-

1. For physical shareholders — Please
provide necessary details like Folio No.,
Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back),
PAN (self-aftested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self-aftested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

2. For Demat shareholders — Members
are requested fo update their email
address with the DPs by following the
procedure advised by them and then
follow the instructions as detailed
above to login for e-Voting.

Instructions for attending the AGM through VC/
OAVM

Shareholders/Members are entitled to attend
the AGM through VC/OAVM provided by
Linkinfime by following the below mentioned
process:

a.

Open the internet browser and launch the
URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

Select the ‘Company’ and ‘Event Date’
and register with your following details:

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No.: Enter
your 16 digit Demat Account No. or
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Folio No., as below-

* Shareholders/Members holding
shares in CDSL demat account shall
provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

e Shareholders/Members holding
shares in NSDL demat account
shall provide 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digit Client ID.

e Shareholders/Members holding
shares in  physical form shall
provide Folio Number registered
with the Company.

B. PAN: Enfer your 10-digit PAN. Members
who have not updated their PAN
with the DP/Company shall use the
sequence number as provided.

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as
recorded with your DP/Company.

Click '‘Go to Meeting’ (you are now
registered for InstaMeet and your
aftendance is marked for the meeting).

C. Instructions for Shareholders/Members to
register themselves as Speakers during Annual
General Meeting

a.

Shareholders/Members who would like to
express their views/ask questions during
the meeting may register themselves
as ‘speakers’ by sending their request
mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at least 3 days in advance with the

Company af legal@bajajelectricals.com.

Shareholders/Members will get
confirmation on first cum basis depending
on the availability of fime for the AGM.

Shareholders will receive ‘speaking serial
number’ for the meeting.

Shareholders/Members, who would like to
ask questions, may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name, demat
account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at legal@bajajelectricals.
com. The same will be replied by the
Company suitably.
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e. Please remember speaking serial number
and start your conversation with panelist
by switching on video mode and audio of
your device.

f.  For a smooth experience of viewing the
AGM proceedings, Shareholders/Members
who are registered as speakers for the
event are requested to download and
install the ‘Webex Meetings’ application
by clicking on the link: hitps://www.webex.
com/downloads.html/

g. Shareholders/Members are requested
to speak only when moderator of the
meetfing/management will announce the
name and serial number for speaking.

Note: Those Shareholders/Members who
have registered themselves as a speaker will
only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting. The Company
reserves the right to restrict the number of
speakers depending on the availability of time
for the AGM. Shareholders/Members should
allow to use camera and are required to use
Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS
download stream) fo avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

D. Instructions for Shareholders/Members to Vote
during the Annual General Meeting through
InstaMeet

Once the electronic voting is activated by the
Scrufiniser during the meeting, Shareholders/
Members who have not already exercised
their vote through the remote e-Voting can
cast the vote as under:

a. Onthe Shareholders VC page, click on the
link for e-Voting “Cast your vote™.

b. Enfer Demat Account No. / Folio No. and
OTP (received on the registered mobile
number/registered email Id) received
during registratfion for InstaMeet and click
on ‘Submit’.

c. After successful login, you will see
“Resolution Description” and against the
same the opfion “Favour/ Against” for
vofing.
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d. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate
option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired.
Enter the number of shares (which
represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off
date under “Favour/Against’.

e. After selecting the appropriate option
i.e. "Favour/ Against” as desired and you
have decided fo vote, click on “Save”.
A confirmation box will be displayed. If
you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“Confirm”, else fo change your vote, click
on “Back” and accordingly modify your
vote.

f. Once you confim your vote on the
resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify or change your vote subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/Members, who will be
present in the AGM through InstaMeet
facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be
eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during
the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who
have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to
the AGM will be eligible to attend/participate
in the AGM through InstaMeet. However, they
will not be eligible to vote again during the
meeting.

Other Instructions

1. The Scrutiniser shall, immediately after the
conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the
votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the
votes cast through remote e-Voting and make,
not later than two working days of conclusion of
the AGM, a consolidated Scrutiniser’'s Report of
the tofal votes cast in favour or against, if any, fo
the Chairman or a person authorised by him in
writing, who shall countersign the same.

2. The result declared along with the Scrutiniser's
Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.bajajelectricals.com and on the website
of Linkinfime  https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
immediately. The Company shall simultaneously
forward the results to National Stock Exchange of
India Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of
the Company are listed.

STATEMENT /  EXPLANATORY  STATEMENT
PURSUANTTO SECTION 102(1) OFTHE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS
REQUIRED UNDERTHE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS,
2015 AND CIRCULARS ISSUED THEREUNDER

The following Statement sets out all material facts
relating to the business mentioned under Item Nos. 5
to 7 in the Notice:

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 23,
2023, based on the recommendations of the Audit
Committee, had approved the appointment and
remuneration of Messrs R. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost
Accountants (Firm registration no. 000010), as the Cost
Auditor for audit of the cost accounting records of the
Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2024,
at a remuneration not exceeding % 1,89,750/- (Rupees
One Lakh Eighty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred and
Fifty only) excluding taxes and reimbursement of out-
of-pocket expenses at actuals, if any, in connection
with the audit. The overall remuneration proposed
to be paid to the Cost Auditor for the financial year
ending March 31, 2024, is commensurate to the scope
of the audit to be carried out by the Cost Auditors.

Messrs R. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants have
confirmed that they hold a valid certificate of practice
under Sub-section (1) of Section 6 of the Cost and
Works Accountants Act, 1959. In accordance with the
provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
and/or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force),
the remuneration payable to Cost Auditor has to be
ratified by the members of the Company.

Accordingly, ratification by the members is sought
to the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor
for conducting the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the financial year ending March 31,
2024,

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or
their relatives are in any way, concerned or inferested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution, except to the
extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the
Company.

The Board recommends the Resolution set out at Item
No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the members.
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Item No. 6

In terms of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
"Act”) read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the “Rules”),
a company shall not make private placement of its
securities unless the proposed offer of securities or
invitation to subscribe to securities has been previously
approved by the members of the company by a
special resolution. In case of an offer or invitation for
offer of non-convertible debentures, the company
can pass a special resolution once a year for all the
offers or invitations to be made for such debentures
during the year.

In order to augment resources for, inter-alia, the
ongoing capital expenditure, long term working
capital/short term working capital and for general
corporate purposes, the Company may offer or invite
subscription for securities including but not limited to
secured/unsecured redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures and/or Commercial Papers, in one or
more series/ tranches on a private placement basis,
in domestic and/or international market, issuable/
redeemable at discount/par/premium.

The Company seeks to pass an enabling resolufion to
borrow funds from time to fime by offer of securities
including but not limited to Non-Convertible
Debentures and/or Commercial Papers for an amount
not exceeding % 500 crore (Rupees Five Hundred Crore
only), at a discount or at par or at a premium and at
such interest as may be appropriate considering the
prevailing money market conditions at the fime of
borrowing.

The details of the Paid-up Capital & Free Reserves and
Outstanding Borrowings are as under:

(Amount: % in Crore)

Parficulars XY Il As af 31-
Mar-23 Mar-22

Paid-up Capital and Free 1,297.21 1,106.98

Reserves

Outstanding Borrowings 0.17 24.58

The approval sought for offer of securities including
but not limited to Non-Convertible Debentures and/
or Commercial Papers, shall be within the overall
borrowing limit of the Company in terms of Section 180
of the Act. Subject to the approval of the Members,
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
has approved the aforesaid proposal vide its resolution
dated May 23, 2023.
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All documents referred to in the accompanying
Notice and Statement setting out material facts on
ltem No.é will be made available for inspection of
the Members through electronic mode by writing to
the Company at legal@bajajelectricals.com from the
date of circulation of the AGM Notice fill the date of
the AGM i.e., August 10, 2023.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in this resolution, except to the
extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the
Company.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set
out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval by the
members.

Item No. 7

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting
heldonMay 23,2023, basedonthe (ijrecommendations
of the Nominatfion and Remuneration Committee
and (i) expertise and experience of Mr. Sudarshan
Sampathkumar, has approved his appointment as an
Additional Director in the category of Independent
Director with effect from the said date. Pursuant to
the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the "Act”), Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar hold
office upto the date of ensuing AGM and is eligible for
appointment as Director of the Company.

In the opinion of the Nominatfion and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company, considering the expertise and experience of
Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar and the immense value
to the Board and the Company, the appointment of
Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years from May 23, 2023 to May 22,
2028 would be in the interest of the Company and
its shareholders. As per Section 149 of the Act, an
Independent Director shall hold office for a ferm upto
five consecutive years on the Board of a company
and shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Registered Office:

45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400001, India.
CIN: L31500MH1938PLC009887

Website: www.bagjajelectricals.com

E-mail: legal@bajajelectricals.com
Tel.: +91 22 6110 7800 / 6149 7000
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Relevant details relating to appointment of Directorship
of Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar, including his profile,
as required by the Act, SEBI Listing Regulatfions and
Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI are provided in the
“Annexure” to the Notice.

Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar is not disqualified from
being appointed as a Director in ferms of Section 164 of
the Act and has consented to act as an Independent
Director of the Company.

The Company has also received declarations from
Mr.Sudarshan Sampathkumar thathe meets the criteria
of independence as prescribed under Section 149 of
the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion
of the Board, Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar fulfils the
conditions for appointment as Independent Director
as specified in the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.
Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar is independent of the
management.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a
member under Section 160 of the Act proposing the
candidature of Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar for the
office of Director of the Company.

All documents referred to in the accompanying
Notice and Statement sefting out material facts on
lfem No. 7 will be made available for inspection of
the Members through electronic mode by writing to
the Company at legal@bajajelectricals.com from the
date of circulation of the AGM Notice fill the date of
the AGM i.e., August 10, 2023.

Other than Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar and his
relatives, none of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and theirrelatives are in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution,
except to the extent of their respective shareholding,
if any, in the Company. This statement may also be
regarded as an appropriate disclosure under the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set
out at ltem No. 7 of the Notice for approval by the
members.

By Order of the Board of Directors
of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Ajay Nagle

Company Secretary & Head of Department
ICSI Membership No. A9855

Mumbai, May 23, 2023
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Annexure

Information of Directors being appointed/ re-appointment at this AGM, pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in accordance with provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and Secretarial Standards-2, as on the date of Notice

Directors Identification Number (DIN) 00014593

Date of Birth (Age in years) August 19, 1952 (70 Years)

Mr. Madhur Bajaqj

Experience and Qualifications Mr. Madhur Bajaj graduated in commerce from Sydenham College,
Bombay, in 1973, and did his MBA from the International Insfitute of
Management Development (IMD), Lausanne, Switzerland, in 1979.

Having more than 30 years of experience in Auto, Consumer Durables and
Financial Services, Madhur Bajaj is the recipient of the ‘Vikas Rattan Award’
from the International Friendship Society of India, for enhancing human life
and outstanding achievements.

He previously occupied the position of President of Mahratta Chamber of
Commerce Industries and Agriculture, President for Industries Association of
Pune, and President of Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers.

He is also serving as the National Council Member of Confederatfion of
...................................................................................... INGANINGUSITY (CI). e

An industrialist having an experience in managing a large industrial
conglomerate.

Shareholding in the Company as on
March 31, 2023

Details of remuneration last drawn (FY 2022-23) % 12.00 lakh in the financial year 2022-23
(for remuneration details, please refer the Corporate Governance Report)

Inter-se relationships between Younger brother of Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman of the Company and

e Directors paternal uncle of Mr. Rajiv Bajai.

* Key Managerial Personnel

Ko 'éf“i"rié.é"r.i'ﬁ.g'; e B T
during the financial year 2022-23

e 'rb'ér'éaﬁ/ﬁ/\ R .s;ﬁi'i:.o'af' s fﬁi&y ................. e

Committee(s) of Board of Directors of the
Company as on date

Other companies in which he/she is a Director Bajaj Auto Limited;
excluding Directorship in Private and Section 8 Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited;
companies as on March 31, 2023 Bajaj Finserv Limited.

Chairperson/Membership of the Statutory Nil
Committee(s) of Board of Directors of other
companies in which he/ she is a Director

excluding Private and Section 8 companies as

on March 31, 2023
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Directors Identification Number (DIN) 00018262
December 21, 1966 (52 Years)

Date of Birth (Age in years)

Mr. Rajiv Bajaj

Experience and Qualifications Mr. Rajiv Bajaj graduated first in class with distinction, in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Pune in 1988, and then completed his
master’s in manufacturing systems engineering with distinction, from the
University of Warwick in 1990.

On returning from UK, he started off at the shop floor level at Bajaj Auto
where he did a three-year stint. He gained experience in the areas of
Manufacturing & Supply Chain (1990-95), R+D and Engineering (1995-2000),
and Marketing and Sales (2000-2005), and rose to be Managing Director of
Bajaj Auto in April 2005, a position he confinues to hold even today. He has
been on the board of Bajaj Auto Ltd since March 5, 2002.

He has been instrumental in infroducing Bajaj Aufo to the motorcycle
market, a segment he believed had great growth potential. This decision
certainly changed the face of Bajaj Auto and greatly accelerated the
Company’s growth. His current priority is the application of the scientific
principles of Homoeopathy to the task of building a brand centred strategy
at Bajaj Auto. His main objective in doing so is achieving Bajaj Auto's
vision of being one of the world’s leading motorcycle manufacturers and
constant innovator in the automotive industry.

Expertise in specific Functional Areas An industrialist having an’ experience in managing a large industrial”
conglomerate.

Shareholding in the Company as on
March 31, 2023

Details of remuneration last drawn (FY 2022-23) % 12.00 lakh in the financial year 2022-23
(for remuneration details, please refer the Corporate Governance Report)

Inter-se relationships between Not Applicable
e Directors
* Key Managerial Personnel

Number of meetings of the Board attended 6/6
during the financial year 2022-23 | oo
Chairperson/Membership of the Statutory Nil

Committee(s) of Board of Directors of the
Company as on date

Other companies in which he/she is a Director Bajaj Auto Limited;
excluding Directorship in Private and Section 8 Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited;
companies as on March 31, 2023 Bajaj Finserv Limited;

Bajaj Finance Limited;
Chetak Technology Limited;
Bajaj Auto Consumer Finance Limited.
g 'r'ﬁéfs'&r'{m\ o 's"rii'i:i' e fﬁi&fy ................. L
Committee(s) of Board of Directors of other
companies in which he/ she is a Director
excluding Private and Section 8 companies as
on March 31, 2023
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Directors Identification Number (DIN) 01875316
January 23, 1962 (56 Years)

Date of Birth (Age in years)

Mr. Sudarshan
Sampathkumar

Experience and Qualifications

Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar has over 30 years of experience in advisory,
consulting, and private equity. He is currently a Partner and Director at
The Bridgespan Group (India), a Non-Executive Independent Director and
mentor at Profectus Capital Private Limited, and on the Advisory board of
Chinmaya Vishwa Vidyalaya, Chinmaya Mission.

Previously, Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar was a Partner & Managing
Director at Bain & Company. He also served as the Managing Director &
GP of a Private Equity Fund and held leadership roles at Accenture and
Neuron Data Corporation.

Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar holds an MBA from the Indian Institute of
Management, Ahmedabad, India, and a Bachelor of Engineering from the
Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore, India. His objective is to contribute to
high-performing entities and boards by leveraging his advisory experience,
implementation skills, leadership experience, and understanding of the
...................................................................................... COMPOTANE SECTON. oo eeeeseeeee oo seeeeeeree e esesseee s eseeen
Having an experience in management and strategy, business advisory
& consulting, investment & treasury, corporate governance and ethics,
economics & stafistics, and such other areas.

Shareholding in the Company as on
March 31, 2023

Inter-se relationships between

¢ Directors

¢ Key Managerial Personnel

R 'i'i'h'éé' R B G o pph L
during the financial year 2022-23

G rp it 'h;iBé'r's'Hi'[:i"d'f' e 't.t)'t'c'ify ................. e

Committee(s) of Board of Directors of the

Company as on date

Siar .(.:.(.)..r.ﬁb B A L
excluding Directorship in Private and Section 8

companies as on March 31, 2023

P rp ot .h;iBé'r.s'Hi'b'af' R fﬁf&& ................. L
Committee(s) of Board of Directors of other

companies in which he/ she is a Director

excluding Private and Section 8 companies as

on March 31, 2023
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INFORMATION AT A GLANCE

Particulars

Details

Day, date, and time of AGM

Mode

Participation through Video Conference
Helpline number for VC participation

Dividend record date

Dividend payment date

Cut-off date for e-Voting

E-Voting start fime and date

E-Voting end time and date

E-Voting website

Name, address, and contact details of e-Voting
service provider

Name, address, and contact details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent

Thursday, August 10, 2023, at 03:00 p.m. (IST)
Video conference and other audio-visual means
https://instameet.linkintime.co.in
022-49186175

Friday, July 28, 2023

On or after Monday, August 14, 2023
Thursday, August 3, 2023

Sunday, August 6, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. IST
Wednesday, August 9, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. IST
Refer Point 19 of the Notice.

Link Intime India Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Rd, Surya Nagar,

Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400083.
Tel.: 022 4918 6000.
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Board’'s Report

Dear Members,
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The Directors are pleased o present the Company's 84th Annual Report and the Company’s audited financial

statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The highlights of the Standalone Financial Results are as under:

(% in crore, except for EPS)

Particulars

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Revenue from Operations & Other Income

Gross Profit before Finance Cost and Depreciation

Less: Finance Cost

Less: Depreciation

Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional ltems and Tax
Exceptional Items

Profit/(Loss) before Taxes

Less: Provision for Tax expenses

Profit/(Loss) after Tax

Add: Other Comprehensive Income

Add: Balance in Profit & Loss Account

Add: Transferred to retained earnings for vested cancelled options
Amount transferred to General Reserves

Amount transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve
Dividend Paid

Balance available for appropriation

Basic EPS (%)

Diluted EPS )

5,500.73 4,860.61
440.85 323.55
47.70 68.67
75.42 63.04
317.73 191.84
0.00 (13.23)
317.73 178.61
87.22 41.83
230.51 136.79
1.76 5.84
0.64 0.35

- 37.50
(34.47) -
814.52 615.77
20.05 11.93
20.01 11.88

The highlights of the Consolidated Financial Results are as under:

(R in crore, except for EPS)

Particulars

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Revenue from Operations & Other Income

Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax

Exceptional ltems

Profit/(Loss) before Taxes

Share of Profit/(Loss) of subsidiaries, associates & joint ventures
Profit/(Loss) before Taxes

Less: Provision for Tax expenses

Profit/(Loss) for the period

Basic EPS (%)

Diluted EPS (?)

5,505.11 4,881.35
303.42 179.51

- (13.23)

303.42 166.28
303.42 166.28
87.23 41.88
216.19 124.41
18.80 10.85
18.77 10.81
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Return on Net Worth, Return on Capital Employed and EPS for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, and for

the last four financial years, are given below:

Particulars A @/7yE7<l FY 2021-22  FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20  FY 2018-19
Return on Net Worth (%) 12.44 9.06 12.31 (0.01) 15.50
Return on Capital Employed (%) 19.53 14.01 13.85 8.20 14.13
Basic EPS (affer exceptional items) () 20.05 13.38 16.08 (0.01) 16.34

The financial results of the Company are elaborated
in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report,
which forms part of the Annual Report.

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS / OPERATIONS
During the financial year 2022-23:

¢ Revenue from operations on standalone basis
increased to % 5,417.41 crore as against % 4,788.19
crore in the previous year - a growth of 13.1%.

e Revenue from Consumer Product Segment
increased by 14% to % 3,752.39 crore.

e Revenue from EPC Segment increased by 29.5% to
% 540.02 crore.

e Cost of goods sold as a percentage fo revenue
from operations decreased to 69.6% as against
71.3% in the previous year.

¢ Employee cost as a percentage to revenue from
operations decreased to 7.7% (X 419.09 crore) as
against 8.3% (3 395.44 crore) in the previous year.

* Ofher expense as a percentage to revenue from
operations increased to 16.1% (X 872.45 crore) as
against 15.2% (X 728.27 crore) in the previous year.

e The Profit after Tax for the current year is ¥ 230.51
crore as against ¥ 136.79 crore in the previous year
- a growth of 68.5%.

e On a consolidated basis, the group achieved
revenue of % 5,429.26 crore as against ¥ 4,813.01
crore - a growth of 12.8%. Net profit for the group for
the current yearis ¥ 216.19 crore as against ¥ 128.52
crore in the previous year - a growth of 68.2%.

As at March 31, 2023, the gross property, plant and
equipment, investment property and other intangible
assets including leased assets, stood at ¥ 903.50 crore
and the net property, plant and equipment, investment
property and other infangible assefts, including leased
assets, at ¥ 589.91 crore. Capital Expenditure during
the year amounted to ¥ 83.27 crore (X 72.60 crore in
the previous year).
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The Company's cash and cash equivalent as at March
31, 2023 was % 340.47 crore. The Company manages
cash and cash flow processes assiduously, involving
all parts of the business. The Company contfinues to
focus on judicious management of its working capital.
Receivables, inventories and other working capital
parameters were kept under strict check through
continuous monitoring.

Foreign Exchange transactions are partly covered
and there are no materially significant uncovered
exchange rafe risks in the context of Company’s
imports and exports. The Company accounts for mark-
to-market gains or losses every quarter end, are in line
with the requirements of Ind AS 21.

During the year under review, there has been no
change in the nature of business of the Company.

Detailed information on the operations of the different
business segments of the Company are covered in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which
forms part of the Annual Report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the
General Reserves during the current financial year.

DIVIDEND & DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend
of 200% (X 4.00) on 11,50,75,638 equity shares of ¥ 2
each for the financial year 2022-23. The amount of
dividend aggregates to ¥ 46.03 crore (previous year
34.46 crore). The dividend on equity shares, subject to
the approval of the Members at the Annual General
Meeting (“AGM") to be held on August 10, 2023, will be
paid on or after August 14, 2023 to the Members whose
names appear in the Register of Members as of the
close of business hours on July 28, 2023; and, in respect
of shares held in dematerialised form, it will be paid to
Members whose names are furnished by Depositories,
as beneficial owners as of the close of business hours
on that date. Shares that may be allotted on exercise
of stock options granted under the Employee Stock

Option Scheme before the book closure date for
payment of dividend will rank pari-passu with the
existing shares and be entitled to receive the dividend.
The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 17,
2022, had last amended the Dividend Distribution
Policy of the Company. In terms of the amendment,
and subject to the parameters/circumstances given in
the said revised Dividend Distribution Policy, the Board
would endeavor to maintain a dividend pay-out in the
range of 20-40% of the Company’s Profit After Tax on
standalone financials. The revised Dividend Distribution
Policy containing the requirements mentioned in
Regulation 43A of the SEBI Listing Regulations is
affached as Annexure A and forms part of this Report.
This Policy can also be accessed on the Company'’s
website at: https://www.bajajelectricals.com

media/7301/dividend-distribution-policy.pdf.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company as
on March 31, 2023 was % 23.02 crore. The increase in
number of shares during the year is on account of
(i) allotment of 19 equity shares of ¥ 2 each to the
shareholders of Starlite Lighting Limited (“Transferor
Company”) pursuant to the Scheme of Merger
by Absorption of the Transferor Company into the
Company and their respective shareholders; and (ii)
allotment of 2,01,505 equity shares of ¥ 2 each to the
employees upon their exercise of stock options. These
shares were included, on weighted average basis, for
the computation of EPS. The Company has not issued
shares with differential voting rights. No disclosure is
required under Section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act”), in respect of voting rights not exercised
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directly by the employees of the Company, as the
provisions of the said Section are not applicable.

The equity shares of the Company continue to remain
listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (collectively “Stock Exchanges”). The
listing fees for financial year 2023-24 have been paid
to the Stock Exchanges.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM

The Company’s shares are compulsorily fradable
in electronic form. As on March 31, 2023, 99.65% of
the Company’s total paid up capital representfing
11,46,68,943 equity shares are in dematerialised form.

In light of the provisions of Regulation 40 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, read with a Circular No. SEBI/HO/
MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25,
2022, as issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI"), Members may please note that the
fransfer of shares will be in dematerialised form only.
In view of the above and to avail advantages offered
by the Depository system as well as to avoid frauds,
Members holding shares in physical mode are advised
to avail the facility of dematerialisation from either
of the Depositories viz. National Securities Depository
Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not
accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V
of the Act. Accordingly, no disclosure or reporting is
required in respect of details relating to deposits.

CREDIT RATING

The below table depicts Company's credit ratings profile in a nutshell:

Instrument

Short Term Debt
Bank Loan Facilities (long-term)
Bank Loan Facilities (short-term)

Rating Agency Rating

CRISIL Ratings Limited CRISIL A1+

CRISIL Ratings Limited CRISIL A+/Watch Positive
CRISIL Ratings Limited CRISIL A1+

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In line with the requirements of the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a
Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions
which is also available on the Company's website at:

https://www.bajajelectricals.com/media/7307/
policy-on-materiality-of-dealing-with-related-party-
transactions.pdf. The Policy intends to ensure that
proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes
are in place for all transactions between the Company
and ifs Related Parties.
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All tfransactions entered with related parties for the
year under review were in ordinary course of business
and at arm’s length basis. No Material related party
fransactions i.e., fransactions exceeding ¥ 1,000 crore
or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover whichever
isless, as per the last audited financial statements, were
entered during the year by the Company. Accordingly,
the disclosure of related party transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act, in Form AOC-2 is
not applicable. Further, there are no material related

party fransactions during the year under review with
the Promoters, Directors, or Key Managerial Personnel,
which may have a potential conflict with the inferest
of the Company af large.

The related party transactions are mentioned in the
notes to the accounts. The Directors draw attention of
the members to Note No. 38 to the standalone financiall
statements which sets out related party disclosure.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with clause 2 of Part A of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the listed entity shall make disclosures in respect of loans and advances in compliance with the
Accounting Standard on Related Party Disclosures. The required disclosure is as under:

(Amount: % in crore)

Name Category

Balance of loans
and advances Maximum outstanding

during the year*

as on March 31,
2023*

Nirlep Appliances Private Limited (“Nirlep”)  Subsidiary
Bajel Projects Limited (“Bajel”) Subsidiary
Hind Lamps Limited (“Hind Lamps”) Associate

93.23 93.23

* Excluding trade advances.

During the year under review, the following person(s) or entity(ies) belonging fo the promoter/promoter group
held 10% or more shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company:

Name of the person/entity Shareholding (%)
Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 19.59
Bajaj Holdings and Investment Limited 16.63

Disclosures of transactions pursuant to the provisions
of Regulations 34(3) read with clause 2A of Part A of
Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations is attached
as Annexure B and forms part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND ADVANCES,
GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder, the particulars of
the loans given, investments made or guarantees
given or security provided are given in the Notes to the
standalone financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed
by the regulators/courts/tribunal which would impact
the going concern status of the Company and its
operations in the future.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY WHICH OCCURRED BETWEEN THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATE TILL THE DATE OF
THIS REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments,
affecting the financial position of the Company, which
has occurred between the end of the financial year
for the Company i.e., March 31, 2023, and the date of
this Board’s Report i.e., May 23, 2023.

APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING
PENDING UNDER THE |INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

No application has been made under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code against the Company; hence

the requirement to disclose the details of application
made or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016)
during the year along with their status as at the end of
the financial year is not applicable.

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE
VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOF

During the year under review, there was no instance of
one-time settlement with banks or financial institutions;
hence the requirement to disclose the details of
difference between amount of the valuation done at
the time of onetime settlement and the valuation done
while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof, is not applicable.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENTS UNDER SECTIONS
230-232 OF THE ACT

* Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Starlite Lighting
Limited with Bajaj Electricals Limited and their
respective shareholders:

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its
meeting held on May 25, 2021, had considered and
approved the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of
Starlite Lighting Limited with Bajaj Electricals Limited
and their respective shareholders under Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Act (“SLL Merger Scheme”).

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench, vide its order dated August 25,
2022 approved the said SLL Merger Scheme
whereby and where under inter-alia the Transferor
Company was merged with the Company with
effect from September 30, 2022.

e Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Nirlep
Appliances Private Limited with Bajaj Electricals
Limited and their respective shareholders:

The Board of Directors of the Company, at
its meeting held on September 29, 2022, has
considered and approved the Scheme of Merger
by Absorption of Nirlep Appliances Private Limited
with Bajaj Electricals Limited and their respective
shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act (“Nirlep Merger
Scheme”).
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The Nirlep Merger Scheme is subject fo the
necessary statutory and regulatory approvals
including the approvals of Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal, the shareholders and
creditors of each of the companies.

¢ Scheme of Arrangement between Bajaj Electricals
Limited and Bajel Projects Limited and their
respective shareholders:

The Board of Directors of the Company, aft its
meeting held on February 8, 2022, had considered
and approved the Scheme of Arrangement
between Bajaj Electricals Limited (“Company”)
and Bajel Projects Limited (“Bajel”) and their
respective shareholders under Sections 230 to 232
of Act (“Demerger Scheme”) involving the transfer
by way of demerger of the Demerged Undertaking
(as defined in the Demerger Scheme) consisting
of Power Transmission and Power Distribution
Business (as defined in the Demerger Scheme) of
the Company into Bajel and consequent issue of
equity shares by Bajel to the shareholders of the
Company. The equity shares of Bajel shall be listed
on the Stock Exchanges, post the effectiveness of
the Scheme. The shareholders of the Company
will be issued equity shares in Bajel in the same
proportion as their holding in the Company.

During the year under review, the Demerger
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at their National Company Law Tribunal
convened meeting of the Equity Shareholders held
on March 2, 2023, through Video Conferencing /
Other Audio-Visual Means.

The Demerger Scheme is subject fo the necessary
statutory and regulatory approvals including the
approval of Hon'ble Natfional Company Law
Tribunal.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is having a Policy on Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR”) and has constituted a CSR
Committee asrequired under the Act forimplementing
various CSR activities. The CSR Committee comprised of
Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, as the Chairman of the Committee,
and Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani and Dr. Rajendra Prasad
Singh, as the members of the Committee. The CSR
policy is available on the website of the Company
at: https://www.bajajelectricals.com/media/7071/
corporate-social-responsibility-policy.pdf.
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Other details about the CSR Committee are provided
in Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
this Report. The Company has implemented various
CSR projects directly and/or through implementing
partners and the said projects undertaken by the
Company are in accordance with its CSR Policy and
Schedule VIl to the Act. Report on CSR activities as
required under the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, is given
in Annexure C, which forms part of this Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY
REPORT (BRSR)

In compliance with Regulation 34 of the Listing
Regulations, a separate report on the Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report, forms an
integral part of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance
has been fundamental to the business of the
Company since its inception. As per Regulation 34(3)
read with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a
separate section on corporate governance practices
followed by the Company, together with the following
declarations/certifications forms an integral part of this
Corporate Governance Reporting:

a. A declaration signed by Mr. Anuj Poddar,
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer,
stafing that the members of board of directors
and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Company's Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics;

b. A compliance certificate from the Company’s
Statutory Auditors confirming compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance;

c. A certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
from the Secretarial Auditor of the Company; and

d. A certificate of the CEO and CFO of the Company,
inter alia, confirming the correctness of the
financial statements and cash flow statements,
adequacy of the internal control measures and
reporting of matters to the Audit Committee.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on
the operations of the Company, as required under the

120 | Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

SEBI Listing Regulations is provided in a separate section
and forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and
Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014, the Annual Return of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 can be accessed
at hitps://www.bajajelectricals.com/annual-reports/.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to report
genuine concerns or grievances about any poor
or unacceptable practice and any event of
misconduct and to provide adequate safeguards
against victimisation of persons who may use such
mechanism. The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted
on the website of the Company at: https://www.
bajajelectricals.com/media/é129/whistle-blower-
policy-vigil-mechanism-wef-1st-april-2019.pdf.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company implemented the Employees Stock
Option Scheme (“ESOP Scheme”) in accordance with
the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014, read with Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI SBEB Regulations”) as
a measure to reward and motivate employees as also
to aftract and retain talent.

During financial year under review, 3,27,500 stock
options were granted to the eligible employees at the
market price prevailing on the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited as on the date of their grant. Details
of the shares issued under ESOP Scheme, as also the
disclosures in compliance with SEBI SBEB Regulations
is uploaded on the website of the Company www.
bajajelectricals. com, which forms part of this Report.
No employee has been issued stock options, during
the year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued
capital of the Company at the time of grant. The
issuance of equity shares pursuant to exercise of stock
options does not affect the profit and loss account of
the Company, as the exercise is made at the market
price prevailing as on the date of the grant plus taxes
as applicable.

The Company has obtained a Certificate from the
Secretarial Auditors stating that ESOP Scheme has
been implemented in accordance with the SEBI SBEB
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Regulations. The said Certificate will be made available for inspection through electronic mode by writing fo the
Company at legal@bagjgjelectricals.com from the date of circulation of the AGM Notice till the date of the AGM

i.e., August 10, 2023.

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE

As on March 31, 2023, your Company has two (2) subsidiaries and one (1) associate. During the year under
review, with the effectiveness of the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Starlite Lighting Limited (“SLL") with the
Company and their respective shareholders, SLL ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company, with effect from

September 30, 2022.

Details of subsidiary/associate companies/joint ventures of the Company

Name

% of shareholding

of the Company as CIH
on March 31, 2023

Nirlep Appliances Private Limited ("Nirlep")
Bajel Projects Limited (“Bajel”)
Hind Lamps Limited ("Hind Lamps")

100.00  Subsidiary
100.00  Subsidiary
19.00 Associate

Performance of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate

Nirlep: Total income of Nirlep for the financial year
2022-23 stood at ¥ 70.76 crore (Previous Year: ¥ 71.17
crore). Loss for the year was at ¥ 10.00 crore (Previous
Year Loss:  7.07 crore).

Bajel: Totalincome of Bajel for the financial year starting
from January 19, 2022 (i.e., the date of incorporation
of Bajel) fo March 31, 2023 was NIL. Loss for the same
period was at 2 0.21 crore.

Hind Lamps: Total income of Hind Lamps for the
financial year 2022-23 stood atf ¥ 3.72 crore (Previous
Year: % 2.82 crore). Profit for the year was at 2 0.04 crore
(Previous Year Loss: ¥ 0.08 crore).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act,
a Report on the performance and financial position
of the subsidiary, associate and joint venture are
included in the Consolidated Financial Statement and
their contribution to the overall performance of the
Company in Form AOC-1 is given in Annexure D, which
forms part of this Report.

In accordance with the fourth proviso to Section 136(1)
of the Act, the Annual Report of Company, containing
therein its Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements are available on the Company’s website
atf: https://www.bajajelectricals.com/annual-reports/.
Further, as per fifth proviso to the said Section, the
annual accounts of the subsidiary, joint venture and

associate of the Company are also available on the
Company's website at: https://www.bajajelectricals.
com/annual-reports/. Any member who may be
inferested in obtaining a copy of the aforesaid
documents may write to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s Registered Office. Further, the said
documents will be available for examination by the
shareholders of the Company at its Registered Office
during all working days except Saturday, Sunday,
Public Holidays and National Holidays, between 11.00
a.m. to 01.00 p.m.

The Policy for Determining Material Subsidiary as
approved by the Board may be accessed on the
Company's website atf: https://www.bagjajelectricals.
com/media/é6127/policy-for-determining-material-
subsidiary-wef-1st-april-2019.pdf.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2023, as per Schedule lll fo the Act
forms part of this Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors also present the audited consolidated
financial statements incorporating the duly audited
financial statements of the subsidiary, associate and
joint venture prepared in compliance with the Act,
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applicable Accounting Standards and the SEBI Listing
Regulations and they form part of this Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Appointments/Re-appointments and Director coming
up for retirement by rotation

* Re-designations and fresh appointments of Mr.
Shekhar Bajaj and Mr. Anuj Poddar

During the yearunderreview, the Board of Directors
of the Company, on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
resolved to split the positions of the Chairman
and Managing Director, and considered and
approved the following in its meefing held on
August 12, 2022:

a The re-designation and appointment of Mr.
Shekhar Bajaj (DIN: 00089358) as an Executive
Chairman, in the category of a whole-time
director, with the title as the “Chairman” of
the Company, for a fresh term of five (5) years
commencing from August 12, 2022; and

b. The re-designation and appointment of Mr.
Anuj Poddar (DIN: 01908009) as the “Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer” of the
Company, for a fresh term of five (5) years
commencing from August 12, 2022.

The special resolutions pertaining to the above
re-designations and appointments were duly
approved by the shareholders of the Company,
with requisite majority, on October 12, 2022, by
means of Postal Ballot, through remote e-voting
only.

e Appointment of Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar
as an Independent Director for a term of five
consecutive years from May 23, 2023

On the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, the Board at its
Meeting held on May 23, 2023, appointed Mr.
Sudarshan Sampathkumar (DIN: 01875316) as an
Additional Director on the Board of the Company
in the category of Non-Executive & Independent
Director to hold office for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years from May 23, 2023 to May 22,
2028, subject to approval of the shareholders.
Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar will hold office as
an Additional Director upto the ensuing AGM of
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the Company to be held on August 10, 2023 and
thereafter, subject to the approval of the Members
at the said AGM, as a Non-Executive Independent
Director, not liable to retire by rotation.

The Board recommends appoinfment of Mr.
Sudarshan Sampathkumar for the consideration of
the Members of the Company at the forthcoming
AGM. The relevant details including profile of Mr.
Sudarshan Sampathkumar is included separately
in the Nofice of AGM and Report on Corporate
Governance of the Company, forming part of the
Annual Report.

¢ Director coming up for retirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of
the Act and the Company’s Arficles of Association,
Mr. Madhur Bajaj (DIN: 00014593) and Mr. Rajiv Bajaj
(DIN: 00018262), are the Directors liable fo refire
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible offers themselves for re-appointment. The
Board recommends re-appointment of Mr. Madhur
Bajaj and Mr. Rajiv Bajaj for the consideration of
the Members of the Company at the forthcoming
AGM. The relevant details including profiles of Mr.
Madhur Bajaj and Mr. Rajiv Bajaj are included
separately in the Nofice of AGM and Report on
Corporate Governance of the Company, forming
part of the Annual Report.

As on the date of this Report, the Company’s
Board comprises of eleven (11) Directors, out
of which, nine (9) are Non-Executive Directors
(NEDs) including two (2) Woman Directors. NEDs
represent 81.82% of the fotal strength. Further, out
of the said nine (9) NEDs, six (6) are independent
directors representing 54.55% of the total strength
of the Board. The composition of the Board is in
conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and also with the provisions of the Act.

Independent Directors

All Independent Directors of the Company have given
declarations under Section 149(7) of the Act that
they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)
(b) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. In tferms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance
or situation, which exists or may be reasonably
anticipated, that could impair orimpact their ability to

discharge their duties with an objective independent
judgement and without any external influence. The
Independent Directors hold office for a fixed term of
five years and are not liable to refire by rotatfion. All
Independent Directors of the Company have valid
registration in the Independent Director’s databank
of Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs as required
under Rule 6(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Director) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019.
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors,
fulfil the conditions of independence specified in
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b)
and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the
Independent Directors are placed on the website of
the Company at: https://www.bajajelectricals.com/
media/6937/letter-of-appointment-to-independent-

directors.pdf.

In compliance with the requirement of SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Company has put in place a
familiarisation programme for the independent
directors to familiarise them with their role, rights and
responsibility as directors, the working of the Company,
nature of the industry in which the Company operates,
business model, etc. The details of familiarisation
programme are explained in the Corporate
Governance Report and the same are also available
on the website of the Company at: htips://www.
bajajelectricals.com/media/7317/familiarisation-
programmes-for-independent-directors-for-financial-

year-ended-march-31-2022.pdf.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the yearunderreview, there has been a change
in the key managerial personnel of the Company. Mr.
Anuj Poddar has been designated as one of the key
managerial personnel in place of Mr. Shekhar Bajaj,
following his re-designation and appointment as the
"Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer" of the
Company, effective from August 12, 2022.

As on March 31, 2023, the Board has designated Mr.
Anuj Poddar, Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. E C Prasad, Chief Financial Officer, and Mr.
Ajay Nagle, Company Secretary & Chief Compliance
Officer, as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company,
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of
the Act, read with the Rules framed thereunder.

None of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
has resigned during the year under review.
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Further, the Board of Directors of the Company, at its
meeting held on May 23, 2023, has:

a. Taken on record the cessatfion of Mr. Ajay Nagle,
Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company,
with effect from the close of business hours on
June 30, 2023, since he would be faking up higher
responsibilities within the group; and

b. Considered and approved the appointment
of Mr. Prashant Dalvi, the existing Vertical Head
- Corporate Secretarial & Compliance of the
Company, as the new Company Secretary &
Chief Compliance Officer and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company with effect from the
start of business hours on July 1, 2023.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Six (6) Board meetings were held during the financial
year 2022-23. The intervening gap between the
meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The details of meetings
of the Board held during the financial year 2022-23
forms part of the Corporate Governance Report.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors had the
following Committees:

a. Audit Committee;

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
c. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee;

d. Risk Management Committee;

e. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;
f.  Finance Committee; and

g. Committee of Independent Directors.

The details of the Committees along with their
composition, number of meetings and attendance at
the meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual
performance evaluation of the Directors individually
as well as evaluation of the working of the Board and
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of the Committees of the Board, by way of individual
and collective feedback from Directors. The manner
in which the evaluation was conducted by the
Company and evaluation criteria has been explained
in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part
of this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors has expressed its satisfaction
with the evaluation process.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors has framed a Nomination and
Remuneration Policy which lays down a framework in
relation o appointment and remuneration of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and
other employees of the Company (“Policy”). The Policy
broadly lays down the guiding principles, philosophy
and the basis for payment of remuneration to Executive
and Non-executive Directors (by way of sitting fees
and commission), Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management and other employees. The Policy also
provides forthe Board Diversity, the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive aftributes and independence of
Director and criteria for appointment of Key Managerial
Personnel/Senior Management and performance
evaluation which are considered by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors
whilst faking a decision on the potential candidates.

The above Policy is given in Annexure E, which
forms part of this Report, and has also been posted
on the website of the Company at: hitps://www.
bajajelectricals.com/media/é6722/nomination-and-
remuneration-policy.pdf.

RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROLS ADEQUACY

The Company's internal confrol systems are
commensurate with the nature of its business and
the size and complexity of its operations. These are
routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as
Infernal Auditors and cover all offices, factories and
key business areas. Significant audit observations and
follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
environment and monitors the implementation of
audit recommendations, including those relating to
stfrengthening of the Company’s risk management
policies and systems.

Based on the report of the Statutory Auditors, the
internal financial controls with reference to the
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standalone financial statements were adequate and
operating effectively.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

REPORTING OF FRAUD

There was no instance of fraud reported during the
year under review, which required the Statutory
Auditors, Cost Auditor or Secretarial Auditor to report
the same fo the Audit Committee of the Company
under Section 143(12) of the Act and Rules framed
thereunder.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has formulated a risk management
policy and has in place a mechanism to inform
the Board about risk assessment and minimisation
procedures along with a periodical review to ensure
that executive management controls risk by means of
a properly designed framework.

The Risk Management Framework is reviewed
periodically by the Risk Management Committee,
whichincludes discussing the Management submissions
on risks, prioritising key risks and approving action plans
tfo mitigate such risks.

Detailed discussion on risk management forms part of
the Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms
part of this Infegrated Annual Report. At present, in
the opinion of the Board of Directors, there are no risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of three Directors
viz. Mr. Shailesh Haribhakti as the Chairman of the
Committee, and Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani, and Dr.
Rajendra Prasad Singh, as the members of the
Committee.

During the year under review all the recommendations
of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.
Details of the role and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee, the parficulars of meetings held, and
aftendance of the Members at such Meetings are
given in the Report on Corporate Governance, which
forms part of the Annual Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
Statutory Auditors

The Members at their 83rd Annual General Meeting
(*83rd AGM") of the Company held on August 12, 2022,
had appointed Messrs S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Registration No.324982E/E300003)
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
for a second term of five years i.e. from the conclusion
of 83rd AGM till the conclusion of 88th Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2027.

The Auditors’ Report on the financial statements
forms part of this Annual Report. There has been no
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer
given by the Auditors in their Report.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act
read with the Rules framed thereunder, the cost
audit records maintained by the Company in respect
of its manufacturing activities are required to be
audited. Messrs R. Nanabhoy & Co. (Firm Registration
No.000010), Cost Accountants carried out the cost
audit for applicable businesses during the year.

Based ontherecommendationofthe Audit Committee,
the Board of Directors has appointed Messrs R.
Nanabhoy & Co. (Firm Registration No.000010), Cost
Accountants as the Cost Auditors for the financial
year 2023-24. The Company has received a certificate
from Messrs R. Nanabhoy & Co., confirming that they
are not disqualified from being appointed as the Cost
Auditors of the Company.

The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is
required fo be placed before the members in the
general meeting for their ratfification. Accordingly,
a resolution seeking members’ ratification for the
remuneration payable to Messrs R. Nanabhoy & Co.,
Cost Accountants, is included at Item No.5 of the
Notice of the ensuing AGM.

The particulars of the Cost Auditors and cost audit
conducted by them for financial year 2021-22 are
furnished below:

ICWA Membership No. 7464

Registration No. of Firm 000010

Address Jer Mansion, 70, August
Kranti Marg, Mumbai 400036.
Financial year 2021-22
September 30, 2022

Cost Audit Report
Due date of filing of
Report
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Actual date of filing of  September 7, 2022
Report

As per Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company
is required fo maintain cost records and accordingly,
such accounts and records are maintained.

Secretarial Auditors

The Board had appointed Messrs Anant B. Khamankar
& Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership
No. FCS 3198; CP No. 1860) as the Secretarial Auditors
fo conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2023, as per the
provisions of Sectfion 204 of the Act read with Rules
framed thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report in
Form MR-3 is given as Annexure F and forms part of
this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark
or disclaimer.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI
Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circulars issued in this
regard, the Company has undertaken an audit for the
financial year 2022-23 for all applicable compliances
as per SEBI Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines
issued thereunder. The Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report duly signed by Messrs Anant B. Khamankar &
Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership
No. FCS 3198; CP No. 1860) has been submitted fo
the Stock Exchanges within 60 days of the end of the
Financial Year.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

Transfer of Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend to Investor
Education and Protection Fund

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the
Act read with Investor Education and Profection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)
Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), as amended, unpaid and/
or unclaimed dividend of ¥ 93,75,78 pertaining to
the financial year ended on March 31, 2015, were
fransferred during the year to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (“IEPF").

Transfer of shares to IEPF

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act
read with the IEPF Rules, 8,677 equity shares of face
value of ¥ 2/- each, in respect of which dividend
was not paid or claimed by the members for seven
consecutive years or more, have been fransferred by
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the Company to IEPF during the year. Details of shares
fransferred have been uploaded on the website of
IEPF as well as the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
is annexed herewith as Annexure G which forms part
of this Report.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company takes pride in the commitment,
competence and dedication shown by its employees
in all areas of its business. The Company considers
people as its biggest assefs and hence has put
in concerted efforts in talent management and
succession planning practices, strong performance
management and learning, coupled with fraining
initiatives to ensure thatit consistently developsinspiring,
stfrong and credible leadership. Apart from confinued
investment in skill and leadership development of its
people, the Company has also focused on employee
engagement initiatives and drives aimed at increasing
the culture of innovation and collaboration across all
strata of the workforce. These are discussed in detail
in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
forming part of the Annual Report.

The relatfions with the employees of the Company
have continued fo remain cordial.

KEY INITIATIVES WITH RESPECT TO STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIP, CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP,
ENVIRONMENT, SUSTAINABILITY, HEALTH, SAFETY
AND WELFARE OF EMPLOYEES

The key initiatives taken by the Company with respect
to stakeholder relationship, customer relationship,
environment, sustainability, health and safety are
provided separately under various Capitals in this
Integrated Annual Report.

The Environment, Health and Safety Policy and Human
Rights Policy are available on the website of the

Company at www.bagjagjelectricals.com.
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PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

In order to comply with provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules
framed thereunder (“POSH Act”), the Company has
formulated and implemented a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of complaints related to
sexual harassment of women at the workplace. All
women employees either permanent, temporary or
confractual are covered under the above policy. The
said policy has been uploaded on the internal portal
of the Company for information of all employees. This
has been widely disseminated. An Internal Complaint
Committee (ICC) has been set up in compliance with
the said provisions.

Number of cases filed and their disposal under Section
22 of the POSH Act, as at March 31, 2023, is as follows:

Particulars Numbers
Number of complaints pending as on Nil
the beginning of the financial year

Number of complaints filed during the 2
financial year

Number of complaints pending as on Nil

the end of the financial year

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details
as required in terms of the provisions of Section 197(12)
of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure H, which
forms part of this Report.

Further, in accordance with the provisions of Sections
197(12) & 136(1) of the Act read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the list pertaining to the
names and other particulars of employees drawing
remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the
aforesaid Rules, is kept open for inspection during
working hours at the Registered Office of the Company
and the Report & Accounts as set out therein are being
sent to all the Members of the Company. Any Member,
who is interested in obtaining these, may write to the
Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Directors confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for
the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along
with  proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

b. they have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounfing records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularifies;

d. they have prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis;

e. they have laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial conftrols are adequate and were
operating effectively; and

f. they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

OTHER DISCLOSURES / CONFIRMATIONS

a. Neither the Chairman nor the Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer of the Company received
any remuneration or commission from any of the
subsidiaries of the Company.

b. The Company has not issued any sweat equity
shares to its directors or employees.

c. The Company has not failed to implement any
corporate action during the year under review.

d. The disclosure pertaining fo explanation for any
deviation or variation in connection with certain
terms of a public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, efc. is not applicable fo the Company.

e. The Company’'s securities were not suspended
during the year under review.

f.  There was no revision of financial statements and
Board's Report of the Company during the year
under review.
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APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors place on record their deep appreciation
to employees at alllevels for their hard work, dedication
and commitment, which is vital in achieving the over-
all growth of the Company.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the
support and co-operation the Company has been
receiving from its suppliers, distributors, business
partners and others associated with it as its trading
partners. The Company looks upon them as partners
in its progress and has shared with them the rewards
of growth. It will be the Company's endeavour to
build and nurture strong links with the trade based on
mutuality of benefits, respect for and co-operation
with each other, consistent with consumer interests.
The Directors also take this opportunity to thank all
Shareholders, Clients, Vendors, Banks, Government
Regulatory Authorities and Stock Exchanges, for their
confinued support.

ANNEXURES
a. Dividend Distribution Policy — Annexure A;

b. Disclosuresof transactions pursuant to the provisions
of Regulation 34(3) read with clause 2A of Part
A of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations —
Annexure B;

c. Annual Report on CSR Activities — Annexure C;

d. Statement containing salient features of the
financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures — Annexure D;

e. Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the
Company — Annexure E;

f.  Secretarial Audit Report — Annexure F;

g. Report on Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo — Annexure G; and

h. Disclosures under Secfion 197(12) of the Act
read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 — Annexure H.

For and on behalf of

the Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Mumbai Chairman
May 23, 2023 DIN: 00089358
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Annexure A

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

PREAMBLE

As per the provisions of Regulation 43A of the
Securifies and Exchanges Board of India (Listing
Obligations and  Disclosure  Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as
amended, the Company is required to formulate
and disclose its Dividend Distribution Policy.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
of Bajaj Electricals Limited (the “Company”) had
approved the Company'’s first Dividend Distribution
Policy at its meeting held on March 29, 2017.

In the endeavour to provide more clarity to
stakeholders on the Company's dividend
distribution  framework, this revised Dividend
Distribution Policy (“Dividend Policy”) has been
framed for adoption by the Board of the Company.
This Dividend Policy shall supersede the earlier
policy and shall be effective from May 17, 2022.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION PHILOSOPHY AND
OBJECTIVE

This Dividend Policy of the Company aims fo
strike a balance between the dual objectives of
rewarding shareholders through Dividends and
ploughing back earnings to support sustained
growth.

The management endeavours to divide ‘net
earnings’ into dividends and retained earnings
in an optimum way to achieve the objective of
wealth maximisation for shareholders.

DIVIDEND

The dividend represents the profit of the Company,
which is distributed to shareholders in proportion
tfo the amount of the paid-up shares they hold.
Dividend includes Interim Dividend.

PARAMETERS FOR DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

External and Internal factors (strategic and financial) that would be considered for declaration of dividend includes:

External Factors

Internal Factors

e State of Economy- in case of uncertain
or recessionary economic and business
conditions;

*  Market conditions and consumer frends;

* Prevailing taxation policy or any amendments
expected thereof, with respect to dividend
distribution;

» Statutory Obligations, Government
Regulations and Taxation policies;

¢ Dividend pay-out ratios of companies in the
same industry; and

* Ofther external factors.

Distributable surplus available and liquidity position
of the Company

Present & future capital requirements of the
existing businesses including any acquisition;
Expansion / Modernisation of existing businesses;

Outstanding Borrowings and covenants thereof;
Likelihood of crystallisation of contingent liabilities,

if any; and
Other internal factors.

Circumstances under which shareholders may not
expect a dividend includes:

e Adverse market conditions & business
uncertainty;

¢ Inadequacy of profits earned during the fiscal
year;

* Inadequacy of cash balance;
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¢ Large forthcoming capital requirements which
are funded through internal accruals;

* Changing Government regulations; and
* Any other relevant circumstances.

Even under such (unfavorable) circumstances,
the Board may, at its sole discretion, and subject
to applicable rules, choose to recommend a

dividend, including out of accumulated profits of
any previous financial year(s) in accordance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
Listing Regulations, as may be applicable.

DIVIDEND PAYOUT

The Board would endeavor to maintain a Dividend
pay-out in the range of 20-40% of the Company’s
Profit After Tax on standalone financials. However,
the Board, at its sole discretion, may pay dividend
which is higher or lower than this dividend pay-out
range.

The Board may also consider declaring or
recommending special dividends or one or more
Intferim dividends during the year. Addifionally,
the Board may recommend final dividend for
the approval of the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting.

The date of the Board meeting in which the
dividend proposal will be considered shall be
infimated to the stock exchanges and post-board
meeting, the outcome of the meeting shall also
be provided to the stock exchanges, as required
under the SEBI Listing Regulations.

UTILISATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Subject to the applicable provisions, the retained
earnings of the Company shall be applied for:

¢ Funding Inorganic and Organic Growth needs
including working capital requirement, capital
expenditure, repayment of the debt, etc. The
Company can consider venturing info new
markets/geographies/verticals;

¢ Research and Development of new products,
investment in emerging technologies, etc. to
increase market share;

e Capital Expenditure by way of state of art
factories, tfechnology upgradation, platform
development, etc.

e Mergers and acquisitions;

e Buyback of shares subject to applicable limits;
e Payment of dividends in future years;

e Issue of Bonus Shares; and

* Any other permissible purpose.

7.

10.

11.

Mumbai
May 17, 2022
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PARAMETERS THAT SHALL BE ADOPTED WITH
REGARD TO VARIOUS CLASSES OF SHARES

The Company has only one class of shares at this
point.

DIVIDEND POLICY EXCLUSION

The Dividend Policy shall not be applicable in the
following circumstances:

(a) Any distribution of cash as an alternative to
payment of dividend by way of buyback of
equity shares.

(b) Distribution of dividend in kind i.e. by the issue
of fully or partly paid bonus shares or other
securities.

(c) Determination and declaring dividends on
preference shares, if any.

DISCLOSURES

The Dividend Policy shall be disclosed on the website
of the Company i.e., www.bajgjelectricals.com.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT

Any or all provisions of this Dividend Policy would
be subject to the revision/amendment to the SEBI
Listing Regulations or related circular, nofification,
guidance notes issued by the Securifies and
Exchange Board of India or relevant authority, on
the subject from time to fime.

Any such amendment shall automatically have
the effect of amending this Dividend Policy without
the need for any approval by the Board or any of
its Committees. This Dividend Policy is subject to
review from time to fime.

DISCLAIMER

This Dividend Policy neither solicits investment in
the Company’s securifies nor gives any assurance
of guaranteed returns (in any form) for investments
in the Company’s equity shares.

For and on behalf of
Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman
DIN: 00089358
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Annexure B

Disclosures of transactions of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/
promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the Company pursuant to the provisions
of Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with clause 2A of part A of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Amount (T in Lakhs)

FY 202122
Ouvtstanding Outstanding
Name of the person or Nature of Transaction [(YN\elJ[2N  Transaction receivable
entity Transaction Value for / (payable) Value for / (payable)
the Year| carried in the the Year carried in the
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
Jamnalal Sons Private Rent Paid 49.56 - 44.84 (6.30)
Limited Rent Deposit - 200.00 50.00 200.00
Advanced
Reimbursement of 4.79 0 4.79 -
Expenses
Dividend Paid 676.45 - - -
Bajaj Holdings and Dividend Paid 57411 - - -

Investment Limited

Mumbai
May 23, 2023
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For and on behalf of
Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman
DIN: 00089358

Annexure C

Annual Report on

Corporate  Social

Responsibilities (CSR) Activities for the Financial
Year 2022-23

1.

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The vision and philosophy of late Jamnalal Bajaj,
the founder of Bajaj Group, guide the Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) activities of the group.
He embodied the concept of trusteeship in business
and common good, and laid the foundation for
ethical, value-based and fransparent functioning.

Bajaj Group believes that frue and full measure of
growth, success and progress lies beyond balance
sheets or conventional economic indices. It is
best reflected in the difference that business and
industry make to the lives of people.

Through its social investments, Bajaj Group
addresses the needs of communities residing in
the vicinity of its facilities by faking sustainable
initiatives in the areas of health, educatfion,
environment conservation, infrastructure and
community development, and response to natural
calamities. For society, however, Bajgj is more
than a corporate identity. It is a catalyst for social
empowerment and the reason behind the smiles
that light up a million faces.

At Bajaj Electricals Limited, CSR encompasses not
only what we do with our profits, but also how we
make them. CSR is a very useful platform to engage
in all key spheres of influence such as market
place, workplace, supply chain and society.

The four pillars of CSR:

a. Sustainability — To ensure that the long-term
business goals are aligned with sustainable
development without compromising on the
economic, environmental and social factor.
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b. Gender Diversity — To have a high performing
inclusive work culture and commitment to
attract and retain capable talent maintaining
gender sensitivity and balance.

c. Employee Volunteering — To reach out to
all employees and drive the volunteering
programs of the Company through collective
social responsibility and strong individual
commitment.

d. Community Outreach Programs — To ensure
the communities where we operate should
also benefit.

CSR Policy:

A detailed CSR Policy was last amended by the
Company on May 25, 2021, with approvals of the
CSR Committee and Board of Directors. The Policy,
inter alia, covers the following:

e Philosophy

¢ Preamble / Objective of the CSR Policy

e Vision

e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
e Responsibilities of the Board

e CSR Programmes/Projects

* Implementation and Monitoring

* Engagement of International Organisations
e CSR Annual Action Plan

¢ Information Dissemination

The CSR Policy is placed on the Company’s website
at: hitps://www.bajajelectricals.com/media/7071/
corporate-social-responsibility-policy.pdf

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
Number of Number of meetings
Sr. Name of Director Designation / Nature of meetings of CSR of CSR Committee
No. Directorship Committee held attended during the
during the year year
1. Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairperson — Managing Director 2/2
2. Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Member — Independent Director 2 2/2
3. Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh Member - Independent Director 1/2
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3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are = SN 505 5 505 05
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

e Amount Mode of Implementation
em from Local Location of the project spent - Through Implementing
Sr. the list of Mode of
. c e . area for the . Agency
No. Name of the Project activities in (Yes / roiect Implementation =
Schedule VII . s ]. - Direct (Yes/No) .CS X
No) State District (Rin Name Registration
to the Act
lakh) number
m 2 (3 (4) (5) (6 (7) (8 (9) (10)
1. School refurbishment Education Yes Maharashtra ~ Mumbai 45.00 No BEF CSR00003537
project
2. Sports Education Yes Telangana Hyderabad 11.00 No BEF CSR00003537
3. Creation of Innovation Creation of Yes Rajasthan Jaipur 41.25 No BEF CSR00003537
Hub for Social Innovation
Entrepreneurs — Anant Hub for Social
Bajaj Limitless Ideas Hub Entfrepreneurs
Total 97.25

Amount  Cumulative

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: ¥ 15.03 lakh.
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable.
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): ¥ 246.24 lakh.

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

;r;. Particular Amount (% in lakh)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 300.63

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 246.24

(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)] Not Applicable

(iv)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the Nil
previous financial years, if any.

(v)  Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Total
. ) spent on amount
Financial amount . Status of
the project  spent at
Sr. Year . allocated ) the
. . . ) Project in the the end of )
No. ProjectID Name of the Project in which the ) for ) ) project -
) Duration reporting reporting
project was the . . ) . Completed
) Financial Financial A
commenced project / Ongoing
in lakh) Year Year
®in inlakh) (% inlakh)
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
1. SV/21-22/005 Rainwater harvesting in 2021-2022  2021-2022 27.04 2.70 27.04 Completed
Govt aided schools
2. SV/21-22/004 Upgradation of WASH 2021-2022  2021-2022 7.72 3.86 7.72 Completed
Infrastructure
3. SV/21-22/006 Scholarship program 2021-2022  2021-2023 56.54 11.31 25.44 Ongoing
4, AC/21- Kalanand 2021-2022  2021-2022 20.00 0.55 20.00 Completed
22/002
5. Gl/21-22/003 Urban Forestation Project ~ 2021-2022  2021-2023 24.75 5.13 17.50 Ongoing
6. GI/21-22/004 Urban Forestation Project ~ 2021-2022  2021-2022 13.36 10.69 11.36 Ongoing
7. GI/21-22/005 Urban Forestation Project =~ 2021-2022  2021-2022 22.01 8.80 19.81 Ongoing
8. Cl/21-22/004 Solar Power Project (off 2021-2022  2021-2022 39.99 4.00 39.99 Completed
grid)
9. Cl/21-22/003 Project Cloth Bag - 2021-2022  2021-2022 10.15 3.05 9.14 Ongoing
Alternate to plastics
10.  ClI/21-22/002 Project Recycle 2021-2022  2021-2022 5.16 4.30 5.16 Completed
1. DR/21-22/012 Upgradation of the 2021-2022  2021-2022 23.74 2.37 23.74 Completed
Primary Health Centre
12.  DR/21- COVID-19 Response, 2021-2022  2021-2022 25.00 10.00 25.00 Completed
22/013b Distribution of medical
equipments
13.  DR/21- Post COVID-19 Livelihood — 2021-2022  2021-2022 16.22 10.54 14.60 Ongoing
22/013a Support to women
entrepreneurs
14.  DR/21- Post COVID-19 Response 2021-2022  2021-2022 4,16 0.00 3.29 Ongoing
22/013c - support for education
fo students
15. DR/21- Post COVID-19 response 2021-2022  2021-2022 8.55 4.29 7.02 Ongoing
22/013d school refurbishment and
education support for
students
Total 304.40 81.59 256.81

Amount Amount Amount Amount
Amount spent . -
. transferred to . spent in the transferred to any remaining to
Preceding till the start . ” .
Sr. . . Unspent CSR . reporting fund specified be spent in
Financial of reporting . . .
No. Account under . . Financial under Schedule succeeding
Year . Financial Year . . A
section 135 (6)  in lakh) Year VIl as persection financial years
(% in lakh) (% in lakh) 135(6). if any (% in lakh)
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) O) (7)
1. 2020-21 204.59 37.67 93.61 Nil 73.31
2. 2021-22 129.18 NA 81.59 Nil 47.59
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year-Nil.

(asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). — Not Applicable.
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. - Not Applicable.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address efc. - Not Applicable.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of
the capital asset). - Not Applicable.

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5)- Not Applicable.

Anuj Poddar Shekhar Bajaj
Managing Director & Chairman and
Mumbai, May 23, 2023 Chief Executive Officer Chairman of CSR Committee
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Annexure D

FORM AOC-1

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary, associate and
joint venture

Part A: Subsidiary
(Amount: T in lakh)

Sr. Parficulars Nirlep Appliances Bajel Projects

No. Private Limited Limited (“Bajel”)

1. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from Not Applicable Not Applicable
the holding company'’s reporting period [Refer Note below]

2. Reporting currency and exchange rate as on the last date of Not Applicable Not Applicable
the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

3. Share capital 743.56 50.00

4.  Reserves & surplus (5,155.45) 30.11

5. Total assets 7.144.09 48.25

6.  Total liabilities 11,555.98 28.36

7. Investments - -

8.  Turnover 7,082.91 -

9.  Profit before taxation (998.99) (30.11)

10. Provision for taxation 1.11 -

11.  Profit after taxation (1,000.1) (30.11)

12.  Proposed dividend - -

13. % of shareholding of the Company in the subsidiary 100 100

Note: Bajel has been incorporated on January 19, 2022, and hence, pursuant to provisions of Section 2(41), the
first financial year of Bajel shall end on March 31, 2023.

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Not Applicable.

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Starlite Lighting Limited (“Starlite”),
which was dissolved without undergoing the winding-up process following the implementation of the scheme of
merger by absorption of Starlite info the Company and their respective shareholders.

Part B: Associate and Joint Venture

Sr.

No Particulars Hind Lamps Limited (Associate)
1. Date on which the associate or joint January 7, 1952

venture was associated or acquired
2.  Latest audited Balance Sheet date March 31, 2023

3. Shares of associate/joint venture held by
the Company on the year end

Number of equity shares 1140000
Amount of investment in associate / joint  Nil
venture

Extent of holding % 19.00
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Sr.

No. Particulars

Hind Lamps Limited (Associate)

4.  Descriptfion of how there is significant
influence

As per Section 2(6) of the Act, "associate company”, in
relafion to another company, means a company in which that
other company has a significant influence, but which is not a
subsidiary of the Company having such influence and includes
a joint venture company.

For the purposes of this clause, “significant influence” means
control of at least 20% of total share capital, or of business
decisions under an agreement.

Since the Company is in a position to influence the operating
and financial policies of both these companies, their financial
statements are consolidated with the Company's financial
statements.
5. Reason why the associate / joint venture  Impaired post Demerger
is not consolidated

6. Net worth aftributable tfo Shareholding 23.01 lakh
as per latest audited Balance Sheet

7. Profit / (Loss) for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation -
i. Nof Considered in Consolidation 0.67 lakh

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil

Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

For and on behalf of
Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Mumbai Chairman
May 23, 2023 DIN: 00089358
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Annexure E

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

2.

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

.This policy (“Policy”) of Bajaj Electricals Limited

(“Company”/“BEL") has been prepared and
adopted in accordance with the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
LODR Regulations”) alongwith circulars issued
thereunder, including any stafutory modifications
or re-enactments thereof for the time being in
force.

.Section 178(3) of the Act and Part D of Schedule I

of SEBI LODR Regulations requires the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”) to
formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of adirector,
recommend to the Board a policy relating fo the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees, criteria for
evaluation of performance, board diversity efc.

.The Committee shall review the Policy periodically

and may amend the same from time to time, as
deemed necessary.

OBJECTIVES OF THIS POLICY

This policy aims fo formulate cerfain criteria for the
following activities with regards to its directors, key
managerial personnel, senior management and
employees:

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

Selection, appointment and removal;
Remuneration;
Evaluation of performance;

Board diversity.

DEFINITIONS

. "Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP" in relation to

the Company, means-

3.1.1. the Chief Executive Officer or the managing
director or the manager;

3.2.

3.3.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

3.1.2. the company secretary;
3.1.3. the whole-time director;
3.1.4. the Chief Financial Officer;

3.1.5. such other officer, not more than one level
below the directors who is in Whole-time
employment, designated as key managerial
personnel by the Board; and

3.1.6. such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Net Profit” shall be calculated as per section 198
of the Act.

“Senior Management” shall comprise officers/
personnel of the Company who meet the criteria
established under the provisions of the Act and
SEBI LODR Regulations, pertaining to the definifion
of senior management.

CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS,
KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Committee shall formulate criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director. The Committee may
consider this Policy and the below provisions of this
Policy as guidance.

The person to be appointed as a Director, KMP orin
the senior management should possess adequate
qudalification, experience and expertise for the
position he or she is considered for, considering
various factors including the Company’s strategy
and requirements.

The Committee shall have the discretfion to decide
whether such quadlification, experience and
expertise of the person is sufficient for him or her
to effectively discharge duties of the concerned
position.

The person to be appointed as Director, KMP
or in the senior management, should possess
impeccable reputation for integrity, efficiency,
expertise and insight in sectors or areas relevant to
the Company’s industry or otherwise demonstrate
relevant qualities.
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4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

In case of a Director, such person’s personal and
professional standing must be such that it helps
him or her to best complement the other Board
members thereby conftributing effectively towards
Company'’s growth.

The Committee shall consider the potential
candidates on merit alone.

In case of a Director, such person must also fulfil
the minimum and/or maximum age criteria as
applicable under the provisions of the Act and SEBI
LODR Regulations and take necessary approvals
from the shareholders in this regard in case of
directors above the maximum age criteria as well
as comply with other requirements of law af the
fime.

In case of an Independent Director, he or she
should meet the requirements of the Act and SEBI
LODR Regulations concerning independence of
directors.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS,
KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Committee shall ensure that the size and
composition of the Board satisfies the applicable
law including provisions of the Act and SEBI LODR
Regulations.

The Committee shall identify persons who are
qualified to become directors, KMP's and who
may be appointed in the senior management with
regard to the attributes as specified under clause
4 of this Policy and such other qualifications or
attributes as the Committee or board may deem
necessary from time to time.

Explanatfion — For the purpose of this clause,
“appointed in the senior management” means:

(i) induction/appointment of persons/officers/
personnel of the Company as members of
the core management feam of the Company
as on date called as the ‘Core Management
Committee’; and

(i) appointment of  person/officer/personnel
as the company secretary or chief financial
officer of the Company.

The Committee while considering a person for
appointment as director, shall verify that the said
person has not been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed as directors of companies by the
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5.4

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”)
and/or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other
statutory authority.

.The Committee shall then recommend the

identified candidates to the Board for final
selection and appointment.

In case of directors, the Committee shall ensure
that the number of directorships held by each
director in other companies is below the specified
limit under the Act and SEBI LODR Regulations and
amendments made from time o fime.

The Committee shall also ensure that any person
appointed as independent director does not
have any material pecuniary relationship with
the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company, or company's promoters or directors,
except receiving remuneration as a director or
having fransaction not exceeding 10% of his total
income or such amount as prescribed, during
the current financial year or two immediately
preceding financial years and also satisfies
other criteria for determining independence as
specified under the Act, SEBI LODR Regulatfions
and amendments made from time fo fime.

A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold
office at the same time in more than one Company
except in its subsidiary company. However, a
whole-time KMP can be appointed as a directorin
any company subject to the provisions of the Act
and/or SEBI LODR Regulations and in accordance
with the policy of the Company.

The Committee shall review the performance of
the Board from fime to time.

The Board shall ensure and safisfy itself that plans
are in place for orderly succession of the board of
directors and senior management.

5.10. The Committee may recommend removal of any

5.11

director or KMP to the Board with reasons in writing
explaining the breach of company policy or any
disqualifications or other such criteria for removal
in line with the provisions of the Act and/or SEBI
LODR Regulations or for other reasons.

. The Board will have the discrefion to retain the
whole-time directors, KMP and seniormanagement
personnel in the same position/remuneration or
otherwise, even after attaining the retirement age,
if they deem fit for the benefit of the Company.

6. TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

6.1.

6.2,

Managing Director / Whole - Time Director /
Executive Director / Non-executive Director

6.1.1. The Board shall appoint or re-appoint any
person as a managing director, whole-tfime
director, executive director or manager for
a term not exceeding five years (5 years) at
a time subject to approval by the members
at the next general meeting.

6.1.2. Noftlessthan two-thirds of the total number of
directors (excluding independent directors)
shall be persons whose period of office is
liable to determination by retirement of
directors by rotation and be appointed by
the Company in general meeting; and at
every annual general meeting, one-third of
such of the directors for the time being as are
liable to retire by rotation, or if their number
is neither three nor a multiple of three, then,
the number nearest to one-third, shall retire
from office as per the provisions of the Act.

6.1.3. The directors retiring by rotation at every
annual general meeting shall be those who
have been longest in the office since last
appointment; the retiring director amongst
directors appointed on the same day shall
be determined by a lot.

6.1.4. At the annual general meeting at which a
director retires by rotation, the Company
may fill up the vacancy either by appointing
the retiring director or some other person as
may be deemed fit.

Independent Director

6.2.1. The term of appointment of an Independent
Director shall be up to five (5) years but he
or she shall be eligible for re-appointment
on passing of a special resolufion by
the Company and disclosure of such
appointment shall be made in the Board’s
Report.

6.2.2. No independent director shall hold office
for more than two consecutive terms but
shall become eligible for appointment after
expiration of three years (3 years) cool off
period, provided that he or she shall not be
appointed or associated with the Company
in any other capacity, either directly or
indirectly during such period.

7. CRITERIA FOR

Corporate overview
Statutory reports
Financial Statements

6.3. KMP and senior management

6.3.1. The term of appointment and subsequent
refirement of KMPs and senior management
shall be as per the provisions of the law
including the Act, SEBI LODR Regulations,
and prevailing policy of the Company.

RECOMMENDATION OF
REMUNERATION

7.1. Executive Directors / Whole- Time Directors /

Managing Directors

7.1.1. The remuneration to the Managing Director
and other Executive directors shall be
broadly divided into fixed and variable
components. The fixed components shall
comprise of monthly salary, allowances,
perquisites, amenities and other retirement
benefits.  The  variable  component
shall comprise of performance based
annual  commission and/or incentives.
The performance criteria are individual
performance based on annual targefs,
Company's performance and recent
compensation frends in the industry.

7.1.2. Subject to provisions of the Act and SEBI
LODR Regulations, the remuneration
payable shall be approved by the Board
of Directors at the time of appointment
subject to approval by shareholders of the
Company.

7.1.3. The overall remuneratfion payable to all
the directors of the Company including
managing director and  whole-fime
directors in respect of any fina